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Quclm: Central Luilway

e} THE TOURINT ROUTE BETWEEN 3--

QUEBEC AND BOSTON,
QUEBEC AND PORTLAND,
AND QUEBEC AND NEW YORK.

Only line running SOLID TRAINS from Quebee to Boston with
Pullman Palace Cars nttached, in connection with the Boston and
Maine R. R.

The Short Line to PORTLAND and all points in Main, through
the heart of the WHITE IOUM‘AIR&

The QUEBEC UENTRAL RAILWAY is admitted to be the
favorite Tourist route from Quebec to the White Mountain Resorts,
Portland, Boston and New York,

Passengers leavin, eboe by Ferry can take through Sk
or Parlor Cars at Le gvolnﬂuﬁo;ny and ?'rﬂw at dulimti'{m wit t
Iu\nge of cnrs,

along the whole route is v sicturesque and in-
m 'l\ﬂ ery | i

plmr tickets md full information at General Ticket Oftice,
is Street, at O gency, and of all Ticket
Agenh of the Quebec Central Rullwuy

Be sure and ask for tickets vin the Quebec Central Railway.

J. H. W,
Gen'l Passenger dgent,

FRANK GRUNDY,
Geneval Manager,




THE

GRAND TRUNK RAILWAY

18 THE
CGREAT INTERNATIONAL ROUTE
BETWEEN THE

EAST AND THE WEST.
It is the Only Line Mnla: THREE Fast Express Trains
Daily (except Sundays) between

Montreal, Toronto Niagara Falls and Ghicago.

IT I8 THE GREAT SCENIC AND TOURIST ROUTE. The ouly
Line affording delightful views of all the principal cities and
vints of interest along the picturesque banks of the St. Lawrence

lver Qnd Bhores of e Ontario.
all-rail route from the West to Cacouns Dalhousie, and
other Smk o and Sea Rm;orts on the Gulf of the St. Lawronee
direet route to Po Me., Old Orchard Beach, and all

thing Resorts on the Aunntlo Coast.

IT IS THE ONLY ROUTE TO THE
MUSKOKA AND MIDLAND LAKES.

SOLID EXPRESS TRAINS,
E e LEOTRIC LIGHTED, between Montreal and Hullhx, via Levis

the Intercolonial Ballwa affordi ers o 0~
ramie view of the historie Oitt' %nebec its urtiﬂon ons, olfe’s
Cove, the Plains of Abraham, he Isle of 6rleans. the F Mont-

moreu:{ the unsurpassed and mountainous scenery of the Metape-
dia Valley, the Salmon fishing grounds of the Mat:ﬁedlt nnd
Restigouc o mvers, the Bale de aleur, and the Laure >
of mouuntains on the Gaspé Coast.

mlunmmmrnnnnmucmmummmm.

thmc Oru '.l'mxu Ornrms
o»o-m 8t. Louis Hotel and 17, Sous-le-Fort Street.

N. J. POWER, G. T. BELL, LJ..EAm,
Gen. Pass. Agent Ass't. Gen. Puss. Agent. General Manager




The Intamolomal Ballway of Canada.

THE POPULAR AND FASHIONABLE ROUTE FOR
SUMMER TRAVEL.

Its attractions for Tourists Pleasur'e Seekers,
Sportsmen and fnval

~ARE UNRIVALLED™

+ A SCHEHNIC ROUTHE -
through Quebee, Néw Brunswick, Nova Scotia and
Cape Breton.

ITS EQUIPMENT IS OF STANDARD EXCELLENCE.

Trains brilliantly lighted by Electricity,

CAREFUL AND POLITE ATTENDANTS.
ExcursioN TickeTs nt low rates for sale at all the principal Railway
and Steamboat ticket offices.

Guile Books, Maps, Hotel lists, Books of Summer Tonrn, Time Folders, .
etc,, furnished free on application

N. WEATHERSTON, G. W. ROBINSON,

Western Fr't & Pass'r Ag't, Lastern Fr't & Pass'r Ag't,

Rossin House Block, Toronto. 138 8t. James St., Montreal,
or D. R. McDONALD,
© Preight & Passenger Agent,
: 38 Dalhousie 8t., Quebeg. .

D. POTTINGER, ; JNO. M. LYONS

General Manager, G. P, and T. ¥, 3

Canadian Government Ry's, .
MONCTON, N. B.
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ONLY LINE RUNNING INTO QUEBEC FROM THE WESI.

IT REACHES IN THE WEST
MONTREAL,
OTTAWA,
TORONTO,
DETROIT,
CHICAGO,
ST. PAUL and
MINNEAPOLIS, and
WESTERN STATES,
Connecting with trains at Montreal for
BOSTON and NEW ENGLAND POINTS and
NEW YORK.

By its overland route

WINNIPEG, BANFF, VANCOUVER

and all Pacific Coast Points.

It has Steamship Lines running to.

ALASKA, JAPAN, CHINA, HAWARIAN ISLANDS,
FIJ1 ISLANDS AND AUl’l'm‘blA.

QUEBEC TIOKET'O‘ITLQ'; 4 FABRIQUE ST.
GEORGE nmlc:nuclw :-)-cnm Agent.
C E. E. USBHER, D. McNICOLL,

Asst. Gen'l Passe QGeneral Passe: Agent,
e ARt moNTREAL kil
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QUEBEC & LAKE ST. JOHN RAILWAY,

THE NEW ROUTE TO THE FAR-FAMED SAGUENAY,

Andthe ONLY RAIL LINE to the

QUEBEC & LAKE ST JOHN RAILWAY. gﬂlt'l 'llx;hgm ﬂllnl:'lme&t > o’rtn and

The New Route v the undas n Uy

FAR. 3 and to Lake St. John MSOU-
AR-FAMED SAGUENAY. coutimi, through the

Canadian Adirondacks.
Trains connect at Chicoutimi with
Saguenay Steamers for
TADOUSAQC,
CACOUNA,
MURRAY BAY,
and QUEBEOC,
A round trl!r umunued in Amer-~

ica, throu chless Forest,
l!ounutln, iver and Lake Scenery,

down it b
day-light and v otost.h%u%? m’a’
City,

TOUCHING AT ALL THE.

Beautiful Sea-side Resorts

on the Lower St. Lawrence, with
their Chain of Commodious Hotels,.

i Hotel Roberval, Lake 8t. John,.
‘ has first-class aceommodation 'fltl)‘x"
800 Guests, and is runin connection

with the Island House, st Grande m-.hm of Lake St. John,.
the Centre of the Ouananiche Fishing Groi .
PARLOR AND SLEEPING CARS,

Magnificent Scenery - *.* — Beautiful Climate..

Apply to the Ticket Agents of all Principal Clties.

Amutlmlly illustrated Guide Book rre?(lm application.
ALEX. HARDY, J. G. SCOTT,

Gen. Pass. Agt., Secy. & Managerc.
Quebec, Can.




QUEBEC STEAMSHIP COMPANY.

TOURS TO THE TROPICS.

BERMUDA AND WEST INDIA LINES

oetens OF THR <o

QUEBEC STEAMSHIP COMPANY.

Hermuda, 8t. Thomas, 8t. Croix, St. Kitts, Antigua, Dominica, Marti-
nique, St. Lucia, Barbados, via the Nw Yotk and West India
Routes of the Quebec Steamship Company.

Now York and Bermuda ROTAL MAIL STEAMSHIP LINE,

The ‘A1’ Iron Bmmblr “TRINIDAD,” 3,000 tons, or ‘' ORINOCO,"
2,000 tons, specially built for the route, having the newest and best pas-
senger accommodation, sail from the Company's pier 47, North River,
New York, every alternate Thursday, during the summer months, and
weekly from January to June.

New York and Windward Islands Mail Steamship Line.

St. Thomas, 8t Croix, St. Kitts, Anti Guadaloupe, Dominica,

Martinique, 8t. Lucia, Bnrluﬂu' 8 - o o
The First-Olass Iron Steamships ** MADIANA,’ 8,100 tons, * FONTA-

BELLE, 2,700 ‘“ CARIBBEEE,” 2,000 tons, ‘‘ BERM DA, 1,400

tons, and ‘' MURIEL,” 1,400 tons. Time vessels have excellent pas-

senger accommodation, and are scheduled to sail from pier 47, North

River, New York, alternately EVERY TEN DAYS. The ** Madiana®’

“Fontabelle,” and * Oaribbee,” the latest additions to the Fleet, are

lighted throughout by electrioity and have all modern comforts and cons

ces.

" SrwciaL Onvises to the West Indies by the “ MADIANA,” # ORINOCO'"

and “ CARIBBEE " dur!n' the winter months.

St. Lawrence Line to Mavritime Provinces.
i slociio lighs, lecitle betle “:'-';,,“';;:‘z.:*,..“““’"m»
ith electric L) ic bells, an m 0| A~

t'il:m, is inund.s 10 sail from Montreal for Pietou, N.8., o.ﬁ:.. at Quebec,

Father Point, Gaspé, Mal Bay, Percé, Summerside and Obarlotietown,

P.E.L, every alternate Monday, commencing the 10th June, 1895, sailing

provdl g iy g TR T LT

way train en Ge conn: s can

::.3: for St. Joh’m, Nfid., St. John, N.B., Portland, Boston and New York.

are for sale at ail Principal Ticket Offices in the United States and

or passage and pamphlets giving information of the above routes,
apply to R. M. :
General Ticket 32 St. Lonis Street, Quebec.
SRS &'l e Y
A B O cu.mmnmmn.nntu
or to ARTHUR AHERN, Scoretary, Quebec, Canada,
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SUMMER, Every 16 minutes...........co.coconnenn FARE, 8.
WINTER 80 © oo “ 10e.

Connects with all trains of the

Grand Trunk, Intercolonial and Quebec Central
Railways.

LIVERY STABLE S.

Nos. 95, 103 and 109, St. Ann Street, Quebec.
CARRIAGES, éOUPéS AND BUGGIES
On hire, with or without Driver,
AT LOWEHST TARIFF RATHS.

GEORGE HOUGH,
TeLePHONE 223, e




S. J. SHAW & Co,,
Finvdware W erchants,

13 St. FOHN Street, Upper Town,
— AND -

37, SOUS-LE-FORT Street, Lower Town.

FISHING TACKLE, GUNS, RIFLES AND AMMUNITION
A SPECIALITY.

FORREST & SONS’ FLIES.

P E ?GﬁL!N & 00.,
JEWELERS AND OPTICIANS,
40 — Fabrique Street —40

QUEBEC.

s~

S8PECIALTY IX SOUVENIRS AND NOVELTIES
OF ALL KINDS.
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Because he represents what is best, and consequently
most worthy of preservation in Canadian literature, and
because of the interest he has taken in the preparation
and publication of this work, and the assistance he has
cheerfully rendered me in connection therewith,

| DEDICATE THIS BOOK

to my friend and colleague,

GEORGE STEWART, Esq.

D, Lirr,, LLD., D.C.L, F.RS8.C, F.R.G.S., &
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{F'GUIDE TO QUEBEC ’@

B. T. D. CHAMBERS,

¢ The best local guide-book of Quebec is that by E. T. D, Chambers,”
—Baedeker's Handbook to the Dominion ¢f Canada, page 38.

PUBLISHED BY

Quebec Morning Chroniecle.
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~<{QUEBEC~ .

“8he gleams above her granite th s
Hor gray walls gird her ample gone;
She queons the North, supreme, alone,”

O sings the poet of the Sierras. And in introducing his inimi-
s table picture of Quebes, he sounds for us the following melo-

dious passage:

“ One entars upon the story and description of this wonderful
oity with great hesitation and feeling of unfitnes. For Dickens, Le-
Moine, Baneroft, Howells, and indeod o hundred ot others have said
great things of theso battlements, ted together by the best
blood of centuries. Quebee is the storehouse of American history,
and the most glorious of eitivs,—beautiful, too, as a picture.”

And what Joaquin Miller found wonderful and glorious and
beautiful in Quebec I8 just what tourists of every class and every
laud find equally s0. She stands at the very threshold of this strong
and impatient New World, in this age of progressive activity and
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enterprise, like alittle pateh of medimval Europe, transplanted, it is
true, upon ~ distant shore, but shutting out by her mural surround-
ings the influences that the whole of the surrounding continent hns
falled to exereise upon her.

Hard by the nineteenth century Ningara of relontless worry and
bustle, yet apparently boyond the rench of that resistless torvent of
commercial competition and turmoil of contentlon for financial
supremacy, she continues upon the calmand even tenor of her peace-
ful way, unmindful of the disquiet and unrest prevailing without
her walls. Time works few changes in Quebee. True to the traditions
of her plous founders, she remains to this day the city of Champlain
ond Laval. The battlements bohind which she remains seciuded
were orected by the religious fervor, missionary zeal and enduring
fortitude of * the pioueers of Frauce in the New World,” strengthened
by the langunge, the customs and the religion of the “ Old-World
France,” whence they sprung. Cemented further, as the American
poet so beautifully expresses it, “by the best blood of centuries,”
these battlements have successfully defled allko the ravages of ruth-
loss time and relentiess foe. Her gates, thrown wide and hospitably
open to peaceful visitors, have heen defiantly elosed in the face of
invading forces, and even under the most adverse circumstances capit-
ulation was only agreed to on condition that the peeuliar fortifica-
tions of her people, erected by the devotion of their early leaders,
should be perpetually maintained. - It was this maintenance of their
ancient ramparts that sccured to England the allegiance of her
French subjects in the New World, when her Euglish-speaking col-
onists broke into open revolt. It secured to Britain the fortress of
Quebee, and caused the repulse of the brave Montgomery. It stands
to-day an apparently insurmonntable barrier to the annexation of
Oanada to the United States, and elicited from a prominent French
Canadian statesman the assurance that the last gun in defence of
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British soverelguty in Canada would be fired by a French Canadion,
No Chinese wall was ever more Jealously guarded or more remarkable
in Its effects upon the tervitory which it onclosed, than these poouling
old battlements of & comparatively modern eity. * Progress,” says
Joaquin Miller, * has gone by the other way. Nogreasy railrond has
yot come screeching and screaming up the helghts that Wolfe
elimbed. She sits above the tide of commerce.” The number and
Influeneo of her priests and churches, the wealth and dimensions of
her conventual establishments, the plety and virtue of her people,
the variety aud extent of her educational institutions, the unexcelied
beauty of her natural surroundings, the absence of commereinl
turmotl and competition, and the story of her glorious past, aroalike
the objeots of her pride.

“History, too, is everywhere around. She arises from the Ram-
parts replete with daring deods, and from the Plains equally cele-
brated for foats of arms, and again sho exclaims : ¢ Horo Iam',”

Fow Wmeficunsg see Quebee.

8 a rule, American tonrists do not see Quebec at all, not even
those that visit the city for the express purpose of doing so.
In o qualnt little volume printed in 1881, by Thomas Cary &

Co,, and entitled * Quebec and its Environs,” the suthor says :

“It is to be observed that our American friends unfortunately
visit Queboe as the last lion in their tour, and generally disembark
from the steamboat from Montreal, remain 2¢ hours, and then return
without seeing anything except a cursory view of the city, wherens
Quebee and the environs abound in the most romantic and charming
views, certainly not equalled in the Canadas, and to all admirers of
the beauties of nature affording o rich treat.” And what was true in
1881 is equally so in 1896, ;




e A

8 CHAMBERS' QUEBEC GUIDE.

There is scarcely a foot hore which is not historie ground, which
is not conseorated by well-established fact or tradition, to the memory
of doeds of heroism, of instances of undying piety and faith. The
daring oxplorers of half a continent, European herocs of martial
strife and strategy and their dusky chieftain allies, noble matrons
and self-sacrificing missionaries, whose doings live for ever in the
burning pages of Parkman, Lever, Charlevoix and Casgrain, have
lett behind them here monuments of their zeal for the cause of relig-
ion and fatherland, or immortalized the ground which once they
trod, the soil for which they fiercely contended, the spot where first
thoy planted the symbol of their religion, or the dust which they
reddened with their blood. The old walls of the city are covered
with historical ivy. And the tourist who would think nothing of
sponding weeks in less hoalthful localities and less hallowed asso-
ciations and surroundings, will often be satisfied that he has done
Quebec when he has cast a hurried glance at the Plains of Abraham
and the Monument to Wolfe, and driven rapidly over streets renderad
historie by the blood of heroes and martyrs, the red man’s daring
deeds and the carefully preserved traditions of the historian and the
novelist. Often in laying out the plan for a summer trip extending
over soveral days and perhaps weeks of time, will he begrudge a
couple of days to the city and environs of Quebee, in his apparent
anxiety to get back to the heatod sands of New England watering-
places, or the din and confusion of the large centres of American
oivilization, with their attendant bustle and heat and ten-story
hotels,

A cursory glance from Dufferin Terrace, of the magnificent view
which spreads itself around and below, sometimes satisfies him that
he has thoroughly familiarized himself with scenery such as is
seldom equalled and never excelled, which forms the subject of many
a noted and wonderfully painted canvas, and upon which eminent

T et i i i ALY
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artists have feastod their oyes day after day for months together.
"T'his eity itself and its immediate locality have afforded new and
varied treats at every turn, for several weeks at a time, to royal and
noble visitors, such as the Prince of Wales, tho late Duke of Albany,
the Princess Louise, Prince George of Wales, the Duke of Conraught,
the late Dean Stanley, Francis Parkman, Joaquin Miller, W. D. Ho-
wells, Archdeacon Farrer, the late Matthew Arnold, and many others
whose names stand high on the roll of fame or of letters.

Nor are Quebec’s surroundings of less interest than the attrac-
tions of the city itself. Buropean travellers have traced the greatest
resemblance between the country, the houses and the members of
the French Canadian peasantry and those of the old French provin-
ees of Normandy and Picardy. New lines of railway and coloniza-
tion roads have opened up com ication with chains of large
lakes, wonderful in their picturesque scenery, and not less remark-
able in the marvellous swarms and superiority of the finny tribes
which inhabit them, Whether the tourist at Quebec be sportsman,
naturalist or geologist, a little observation will place temptations in
his way seductive enough to influence him to an indefinite prolonga-
tion of his stay. Audubon and Waterton in years gone by spent
several weeks in and around Quebee, making a special study of the
Canadian Fauna, and admirable publie collections of stuffed speeci-
mens may be seen at Laval University and inthe museum of the
High School. That well known scientist, Sir Willilam Dawson, of
Montreal, first President of the Royal Society of Canada, devotes
special attention insome of his books, to the peculiar geological
formations and volcanic upheavels noticeable in the strata in the im-
mediate vicinity of the city. Quebec’s claims as a summer resortare
unsurpassed upon the continent of America. If these claims are
brought more prominently to the notice of the tourist by means of
this Jittle book, in so successful 4 manner as to induce him to remajn
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here for a sufficient longth of time to investigate them for himself,
the author knows that he may count upon his sincere and lasting
gratitude.

Look on the vision awakened in the poetic mind of the brilliant
author of “ Roughing it in the bush,”—-Mrs. Moody (Suzanna Strick-
land):—

“Every perception of my mind became absorbed into the one
sonse of seeing, when, upon rounding Point Levis, we cast anchor be-
fore Quebee.  'What a scene! Can the world produce another ? Edin-
burgh had been the beau idexl to me of all that was beautiful in
nature, a vision of the Northern Highlands had haunted my dreams
across the Atlantic; but all these past recollections fade before the
prosent of Quebec. Nature has ransacked all her grandest elements
to form this astonishing panorama. My spirit fell prostrate before
the scene, and I melted involuntarily into tears.”

The late Henry Ward Beecher recorded his impression of Que-
bee thus:—* Queer old Quebec! of all the cities on the continent of
America, the quaintest. Here was a small bit of medieval Europe
perched upon a rock and dried for keeping, in this north-east corner
of Ameriea, a curiosity that has not its equal in its kind on this side
of the ocean. We rode about as if we were in a picture book, turning
over a new leaf at each street.” .

‘W. D. Howells, the American novelist, thus describes the emo-
tions stirred in him by the contemplation of Quebec:—

“Montcalm laying down his life to lose Quebec is not less affect-
ing than Wolfe dying to earn her. The heart opens towards the
sold or who recited on the eve of this costly vistory, ‘the Elegy in a
Country Churchyard,’— which he ‘would rather have written than
beat the French to-morrow,’” but it aches for the defeated general,
who, hurt to death, answered, when told how brief his time was:
‘8o much the better; then I shall not live to see the surrender of
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Quobec!' In the ity for which they perished, their fame has never
been divided.”

A more recent writer says:—* One has only to dip into the his-
torical memories which clothe the ancient City of Quebee, to find
within what a tangle of romance, chivalry and heroism this town
has lifted upon its sombre walls. Francis Parkman insad refraliiover
the lost glories of old France in the New World, says: * The French
Dominion is a memory of the past; and when we wake its departed
shades, they ride upon us from their graves In strange romantic
guise. Again their ghostly campfire seems to burn, and the fitful
light is cast around on lord and vassal, and black-robed priest.
* # & Aboundless vision grows upon us, an untamed continent,
vast wastes of forest verdure; mountains silent in primeval slecp;
river, lake and glimmering pool; wilderness, oceans mingling with
tho sky. * * * Men steeped in antique learning, pale with the
close breath of the cloister here spend the noon and evening of their
lives.’

‘Irubbed my oyes tobe sure I was in the nineteenth century,’
says the great Thoreau in giving his first impressions of Quebec.

¢ Apart from the realities of this most picturesque city, there are
associations clustering about it which would make a desert rich in in.
terest. The dangerous precipice along whoso front Wolfe and his
brave companions climbed to glory; the Plains of Abraham, where
he received his mortal wound; the fortress so chivalrously defended
by Montcalm, and his soldier’s grave dug for him, when yet alive, by
the bursting of a shell, are not the least among them, or among the
gallant deeds of History.” The last fow lines express the thoughts
of Charles Dickens,

Quebee has seen the years of two centuries and is growing to-
wards the close of the third. Through all this period the quaint old
town has passed and wears the wrinkled brow. Atone time it was
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the seene of tragady, toned by the waves of passing splendour and
luxury, at another the busy mart of foreign trade. All these
moods in the life of the city have loft their mark, and it would bu
diffieult to imagine a town more quaint or picturesque.”

Meigin of the naume ¢ Quebee.”

HE very origin of Quebeo’s name has been associated with
? legend by the chroniclers of her romantic past. Some of the
derivations ventured by etymologists are as ingenious as thoy
are fanviful. Theword “Quebec” has heen compared withthe “ Ke-
pek  of the original occupants of the gite, said to have been theexpres-
eion of welcome used by thiem on the appearance at Stadacona of Jace-
ques Cartierand his expeditionary foree, in view of their hesitation to
meet thom, and which the Frenchmen considered as equivalont to
their own Débarquez ! Others, again, have traced the origin of the
name to the exclamation *Quel boc!” (what a cape), attributed to a
Norman sailor at his first glance of the rocky promontory. It is now
all but universally conceded that the name is of Indian ovigin, It is
first found in the writings of Champlaiu, who says:—*“We came to
anchor at Quebee, which is a strait of the river of Canada;” and
Abbé Faillon, commenting upon this statement, adds: “ This name,
which in the language of the Micmac Indians, signifies ‘straits’ or
‘narrowing ’ of a river (rétrécissement), and Cht'\mplnln's manner of
speaking, in calling Quebee, not the town yet to be built, but the
locality penned up from the river, show how utterly unfounded are
the other interpretations imagined for the name of Quebec.”
Charlevoix in his “Journal ” addressed to the Duchess of Lesdi-
guidres, writes: —
“ Above the Island (of Orleans) the river narrows all at once to
such an extent, that in front of Quebeg it is not more thana mile
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wide, 1t is this which has given to this place the name of Quebeio
or Quebee, which in the Algonquin language signfies ‘narrowing.
The Abenaquis, whose language is a dialect of the Algonquin, name
it Qualibec, which signifies ‘that which is closed,’ because from the
mouth of the Chaudiére, by which river these Indians come to Que-
bee from the vicinity of Acadia, the Point of Levis which laps over
the Isle of Orleans, entirely hides the South Channel. The Isle of
Orleans hides the North Channel, so that the port of Quebec appears
(from Chaudiere) to consist only of a large bay.” According to Rov.
J. M. Bollenger, an old missionary, to whom the Micmae language
was perfectly familiar, “Quebec ” comes from the word “ Kébéqué,'
which he frequently heard applied by his Indian guides to a * nar-
rowing of the waters formed by two tongues or points of land pro-
truding into them.” Lescarbot and the Abbé Malo agree with
Messrs. Charlevoix and Bellenger, and Parkman (1) is of opinion that
the origin of the name can no longer be doubted.

Father Arnaud, the famous missionary to the Indians, sti!' holds
to the Montagnais origin of the name; and according to this veteran
authority, the aboriginal greeting to the first French arrivals here
of “Kepek! Kepek!”—*“disembark!” or “comeashore,” was mis-
taken for the name of the promontory behind the natives towards
which they pointed, and upon which the Upper Town of Quebec is .
now built, or of the Indian settlement near by; and * Kepek " or
Quebee it has remained ever since, though its Indian name was
“ uapistikoiats " or “white cape,”the French equialent of which,
Cap Blang, is stil! applied to a portion of the eity lying in the shadow
of the great rock crowned by the Citadel. Another Indian name for
the locality,—Stadacona, means “a crossing upon floating wood.”

(1) * The Pioneers of France in the New World,” page 301, edition of 1483,
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When much of what is now the site of 8t. Rochs suburhs was covered
with water at every high tide, the mouth of the 8t. Charles was
frequently blocked with drift wood, so much so that the then inhab-
itants frequently crossed over it on foot from one side of the bay to
the other.

Cape Diamond, which bears the Citadel upon its summit, takes

its name from the numerous quartz crystals, sparkling like dinmonds,
which are found upon it.

The Chatenun Ffontenue.

EYOND any question, the finest hotel site in the world is that
occupled by Quebec’s magnificent new hostelry, the Chateau
Frontenae, which first threw open its doors for the reception of

guests in December, 1898. Erected upon the very margin of the
world-renowned Dufferin Terrace,—overlooking a magnificent pa-
norama of river, mountain, island, fortress and forest scenery, -
standing upon the exact site of the famous Chatean St. Louis of hi--
toric memories,—-its towers, spires, arches and turrets in keeping
with the chateau architecture of the sixteenth century,—it lends
itself with grace to its surroundings, and the famous Terrace above
referred to,—over 500 yards in length and 180 feet immmediately above
the 8t. Lawrence and the Lower Town, is the promenade balcony of
its guests. In its halls thetraveller may smoke the pipe of peace
with the ghosts of departed chieftaing; he may listen to the secret
councillings of the representatives of kings, or hear the merry
revellings of red coats round the mess. The boom of the noon-day
cannon, the tread of the sentry without, will ever remind the guest
of an historie past. 'The mighty river flowing silent to the sea, laps
the very base on which it stands. The proud ships spreading white
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salls to the sun, the chasm cut by yonder waterfall, tho quaint
Canadian villages nestling on its banks of green, or the smaller
hamlet hiding away like a rare flower in some remote valley, hemmed
in by tree-vlad mountain and the dome of summer sky--what a ple-
ture to gazo upon from one’s room. And how home-like and com-
fortable are the rooms in this princely Chateau, and how unexcelled
anywhere are the cuisine and menus, have been testified to by the
Earl and Countess of Aberdeen and their suite, by the Goulds, the
Vanderbilts, the Astors and thousands of prominent tourists from
all parts of the world.

The architecture of the building is that of an old chateau, of the
age of Frontenac himself, or more properly speaking, perhaps, that
of the century preceding it,~-the age of the early days of Champlain,
the builder of the Chateau 8t. Louis and his contemporaries. In form
the building is something like a horseshoe, the space in the centre
being occupied by a large court yard, measuring 170 by 100 feet. The
main entrance is found in this court, which is reached through a
handsome arch of stone, supported at the sides by colonnades of the
same material. The exterior of the archway faces St. Louis street
and issurmounted by the historic keystone bearing a Maltese Cross
and the date 1647. This stone was discovered in 1784 by the work-
men engaged in levelling the yard in which Haldimand's Chatean
was in course of erection. Mr. J. Edmond Roy, who has admirably
summed up much that has been written on the subject, is of the opin-
ion that in olden times, the original Order of Knights of Malta in-
tended to establish a priory in Quebee, and that Governor Mont-
magny, himself a Knight of Malta, laid the foundations of a house
for the use of such priory in 1647, and had this stone prepared to
insert in the walls. (1.) Tt is let into the stone above the gate.

(1) L' Ordre de Malte en Amérique, by J, E. Roy, 1888,

.
i
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The principal material usod in the construction of the walls is &
handsome fire-brick, which was brought from Scotland specially for
the purpose, The foundation walls and the pretty and graceful cor-
nices, the turrets and the upper parts of the round and hexagonal
towers are built of a rich grey stone from the quarries of Lachevro-
tidre. The roofing throughout is of copper, which harmonizes very
prettily with the color of the brick.

The turrets and towers lend to the whole structure the appear-
ance of a mediwval castle perched upon a precipice. On Des Car-
riéres street the building's frontago is 288 feet, opposite to the Place
@’Armes 70 feet, facing the Post Office 100 feot and towards the Ter-
race 120 feet. This variety in the different directions in which the
bullding fronts affords a view, the range of which extends from the
Citadel to Lorette if seen from the upper stories and (o Beauport as
seen from below. From the extremity of the wing facing on to Des
Carriéres stieet to the extremity of that overlooking the Terrace the
distance is 120 teet.

‘The main building from the court yard is surmounted by a large
shield bearing the arms of Frontenae carved instone. Immediately
within the main entrance, guests find th Ives ina hand, Ves-
tibule and facing the office of the hotel; the counter and all other
furnishings being of antique oak. The main vestibule is some 62 feet
long and of moderate width, being entirely distinet from the rotunda
aud writing rooms. There is therefore neither excuse noropportun-
ity for loungers to sit or remain about the main entrance or the foot
of the principal staircase or of the main elevator, both of which lead
up from {4, and so ladies feel ag perfectly comfortable and at home
in entering the vestibule upon arrival in the house, or when coming
down to the hotel office, the news stand, the ticket or telegraph
office, as if they were in their own drawing-room. Once inthe vesti-
bule, the visitor is at onee struck with the beauty of the mosaic stone
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flooring and the richness of the woodwork and mural decorations,
The carved oaken mouldings and dentil cornices are very elaborate
and beautiful. Upon the walls are a variety of inlaid tapestries,
Faclng the guest as he approaches the foot of the grand stairease
aro the arms of Frontonac, and these, painted upon his shield and
supported by knights in 16th century armor, are repeated over the
ticket office and naws stand. Frontenac and Montmagny aroench of
them represented in complete armour, with shields, and the arms
of the Province are surmounted in some cases with the names of dis-
tinguished Viceroys, including those of Champlain and Bherbrooke
in addition to those already mentioned. There are also the arms of
the Dominion and the Province, in some eases supported by griffins,
and the dates “1608-1808," marking of eourse the epochs of the found-
ing of Quebee and of the erection of the hotel, or more correctly
speaking, perhaps, at all events so far as the intentions of the design-
or are concerned, if not chronologically, those of the construction of
the two chateaux upon very nearly the same site, that of the prim-
itive Chateau 8t. Louls of Champlain, and that of the princely
Chateau Frontenae of modern Quebee.

The rotunda, which is next to the writing room, and quite easily
reached from the vestibule, is eireular In shape, 47%4 feet in diameter,
~a very handsome apartment oceupying the entire space upon this
floor within the large ecireular tower. On account of its shape and
situation, its windows afford magnificent views of the Terrace, the
river and Levis, not only immediately in front but on either side,
The same remark, of eourse, applies to the Ladies’ Parlor, which is
in the same tower immediately above the rotunda and of the same
sizo. The rotunda is loored in mosaic, like the main vestibule. The
ceiling is paneled in very handsome designs by oak mouldings, and
within these, are depicted alternately, the arms of Frontenae, of the

2
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Provinee and of the Dominlon, The two firc-places in the rotunda
ore of Blenna marble and have very rich mantel pleees.

The walls of the corridor leading from the main vestibule to the
coffee-room arve decorated with paintings on tapestry, In enlnrged
slae, of the design from the reverse of the old bank tokens issuod as
ponny pleces many years ago.

The coffee-room is a spacious apartment on the timt floor, oe-
cupying the extremity of the wing that stretehes towards 8t. Louis
street. As in the case of the dining-room, which ts immediately
above it, the windows on the south side look across the court vard
and over the Terrace and garden in the direction of the Citadel, and
on the north side overlook the Post Offiee and the Place d’Armes. 1ta
dimensions are almost those of the dining-room, which measures 58
feet by 45. Over the large open fire-place, which js of Tennesseo
marble, is the motto from the erest of the city of Quebec: * Nutwra
Fortis, Industria Cvescit.”” The walls are a rich brown color, with
flluminated frieze below the cornices, and oak wainscotting.

The dining-room is situut‘ed. as already mentioned, in the Place
d’Armes extension of the Chat on the second floor, immediately
above the coffee-room, It hasa breakfast-room in the hexagonal
tower as an annex, and together they have a seating capacity of
three hundred. The floors of both are of oak in horring-bone pattern.
The most attractive features of the dining-room itself are the magni-
ficent views from the windows and the rare and beautiful tapestries
that decorate the walls and are inserted all around them within the
oaken-framed panels. ‘These tapestries represent the history of the
foundation of Rome, They are equally of interest, beeause they re-
present an important event in the history of the Roman Empive, and
because the characters depicted are costumed after the fashion of
the 16th contury, the epoch of the architecture of the Chatean, The
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CHAMBRRS' QUEBEC GUIDE. 10

trentment of the room, in keeping with the character of the whole
building, s exactly what would have been executed at the epoch
reforred to, excepting, of course, that up to the end of the 17th cen.
tury,--tapestries were only hung upon vings on the walls and never
fastencd, for the reason that the nobles, copying the customs of the
kings, travellod from castle to castle with their tapestries, which,
together with their trophies of war, were the ouly ornaments of the
stone walls, The dining-room mantel is a very beautiful aud very
elaborate plece of work,

On the same floor as the dining-room are the drawlug-room and
ladies’ parior. The parlor being immediately above the rotunds, in
the large circular tower, corresponds with it in shape and dimens
sions, while the drawing-room Is immediately above the hotel offies,
The view from both includes the rviver and opposite shores. The
wouod-work in both apartments is of white mahogany and the fire-
places are of the handsome marble known as Jaune Lamartine, lined
with soapstone. The pariors and drawing-rooms, as well as the cor-
ridors, and in fact all the roome on the first, second and thivd flats
are carpeted in first quality Axminsters. The furniture in the
drawing-rooms and parlors is besutifully uphoistered, partly in
brocade and partly in corduroy to mateh the dolicate tints of the
walls, All around the upper cornico of the circular parlor are sus-
pended electric light lamps in a delicate shade,—some forty alto-
gether, in addition to the bracket lights,

The hotel contains no less than 170 bed-rooms, 93 M which are
supplied with bath-rooms. Many of them are en suite, and connected
by inside passages apart from the publie corridors. All have waid-
robes and open fire-places, the grates being surrounded with Minton
tiles of various shades.

Take it all in all, it is doubtful if there is to be found anywhere
80 elogant and so comfortable a hotel, for its size, as this Chateau,
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Dubfefin Peffuce.

pride of Quobec. It Is a planked platform jutting out along

the very brink of the ¢liff, vwoero tho southerly pavt of the
Upper Town looks over and down towards the 8t. Lawrenee, 183
feot below, It is 1500 feet long, There Is not such anothor In the
whole world. The original Terrace bore the name of Durham, after
o former popular Governor General, and was only 200 feet in length,
It was Lord Dufforin who suggested the prolongation that was made
In 1879, and whose name it has since borne. The city pald the cost
of the work, amounting to $15,000, and the plaus were designed by
Ohevalior Baillalvgd, City Englnoor, Unfortunately it has become
pecessary to condemn, as unsafe, and to close against the publie, n
small portion of this maguificont promoenade, at the end that lles
Just under the Citadel. This Is in consequenco of the disastrons
landside that occurred from the face of the rock immediately below
the end of the Terrace on the fatal night of the 19th September, 1850,
The rocky debris may he seen below, that in it fall crushed and
burled seven or eight honses to a depth of twenty to thirty feot,
hurling botween fifty and sixty souls into eternity without a mo-
ment’s warning, ,

‘What n matehloss landseape bursta upon the delighted beholder
from this mMagnificont Terrace! Forest, field and flood, the pale,
goft blue of distant hilis and the overhanging rock of the frowning
granite Cape, swoetly undulating meadow slopes and the wild gran-
deur of yon rugged steepy oliffs, fertile fiolds bespangled with the
neatly white-washed houses of comfortable Canadian farmers, and
the broad bosom of the majestio St. Lawrence heaving beneath the
burden of gigantic greyhounds of the Atiantie, saucy litile tugs,

BU!’I‘BBIN Terrace s an imcomparable promonade and the
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thrifty markot steamers and white-wingod ships of the Canadian
timbersfloct,

Nature bas here indoed boen most lavish in the distribution of
her tavors, nnd this Torraco and the Citadol above are the spots
whereon to stand to view to the very best advantage one of the most
brilliant combinations in the whole round of her kaleldoscopic wone
ders, Lot us stand o while and feast the oyes upon the unrivalled
seone. Then we may cllmb the grassy surfuce of the Glacls, which
slopes down from the edgo of the moat that separates it from the
King's Bastion. From no other standpoint in the old eity may tho
tourist better view the remarkable panorama of scenic hesuty
stretehing away out from the Gibealtar of Ameriea than from this
King's Bastion in the Citadel of Quebee, whenco rises the flagstaff
that floats tho emblom of Britain’s sovoreignty in this old French
Provinee,

We are alongside of it now, with only a deop diteb between, 'The
bold heights of Lovis on the other side of the stream, the broad ex-
panss of water looking towards the sea, with the pleturesque Islo of
Orleans strotehing down from opposite the Falls of Montmorency to
below the saintly shrine of the miracle-working 8t. Anne, form a plo-
ture whose boauty I8 but seldom equalied, and around which olusters
such a stock of logendary lore and historle memories that t.e very
alr seems haunted by the spirits of doad saints and heroes. Nor is
the setting unworthy of the pleturd. Those aro the Laurentian
mountalns that form the deep blue background stretching away in
the distance towardsthe north for nearly two bundred miles, and
full of the intorest excited by all far northern latitudes. Till within
the last fow years the Interior of this mountain region had be&n
practically an unknown land. Many of the ts of these L
tian mountains still romain locked within their own bosoms. Re-
cont surveys have brought to light many Interesting fpcts concerns
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ing them, hitherto veiled in obscurity, but they cover thousands of
square miles of country which the foot of the white man has searcely
yet trodden.

Wao eannot cross the moat into the Citadel here, so we willagain de-
scend to the Terrace. On fine summer evenings this promenade is
the resort of thousands of citizens, always including a large repre-
sentation of the youth and beauty of Quebec. Two or three times a
week there is music on the Terrace, and on band nights it is throng-
ed with fashion and gayety.

The (iovefno#'g fiafden.

HERE on your left is a pretty little shady retreat, of which the
T prineipal attraction is the twin-faced monument to Wolfe and
Montealm, erected in 1827 and 1828, in joint honor of the illus-
trious contending generals, who gained a common fame and met a
common death. 1t was Lord Dalhousie, then Governor-General of
Canada, who originated the sentimental and pretty idea of this
monument, erected by the descendants of those who had met in
mortal combat nearly seventy years before. The corner-stone was
laid with masonic grand honors on the 15th November, 1827, by R.
W. Provincial Grand Master Claude Dénéchaud, a distinguished
French Canadian Freemason and Member of Parliament.

This monument is strictly classical in the proportions of every
part. To the top of the surbase is sixteen feet from the ground, on
this rests the sarcophagus, seven feet eight inches high. The obelisk
measures forty-two foet eight incheg, and the apex two feet one inch,
making altogether sixty-five feet from the ground. The dimensions
of the obelisk at the base are six feet by four feet eight inches,
tapering conically to the apex, when the sides are diminished to
three feet two inches by two feet five inches.
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ds of . The following inscription, composed by Dr. Fisher, is carved on
u 3
reely ’ the front of the sarcophagus: :
nde- 1 MORTEM, VIRTUS, COMMUNEM, FAMAM, HISTORIA, ] :
dois ; MONUMENTUM, POSTERITAS DEDIT, |
» ] : g :
ye k| Which may be translated as follows:— ) ]
108 o “Valor gave them a common death, history a common fame, and tg
S i 4 posterity a common monument.,"”
: Outherear is the following, altered from that which was inseribed |
' upon the plate deposited with the foundation stone: ;
HUJUSCE ; 3
the : MONUMENTI IN VIRORUM ILLUSTRIUM MEMORIAM ; i
;’“‘ | WOLFE gr MONTCALM, t i
‘tls' ‘ FUNDAMENTUM, P.C. ; 4
ot a i 4 # i
ol " GEORGIUS COMES DE DALHOUSIE IN SEPTENTRIONALIS AMERICE o
) 8
AW JS i
this ,, PARTIBU i
$in ; 4 AD BRITANNOS PERTINENTIBUS SUMMAM RERUM ADMINISTRANS : i
s il OPUS PER MULTOS ANNOS PRATERMISSUM QUID DUCI EGREGIO g 4
b g
v R. : CONVENIENTIUS ? 5
hed a1 AUCTORITATE PROMOVENS EXEMPLO STIMULANS MUNIFICENTIA FOVENS, ) ﬁ
‘§ A. D, MDOOCXXVII ( |
ory . ] i
ok GEORGIO TV BRITANNIARUM REGE. o |
’ 7
¢
lisk Every foot of the land over which the Terrace is constructed is i
1ch, historic ground. Deeds of military prowess and daring seem still to
ons hover in the air behind and below you on every side. g
u::, On the narrow ledge of land immediately below, and lying be- B

tween the river and the base of the perpendicular rock, is built a
portion of the Lower Town, The rock is so perpendicular and the
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strip of land at its foot 8o narrow that you must advance to the
very front of the Terrace to get a good view of the antique Lower
Town. Narrew as is the ledge upon which it is built, it was at
one time much narrower still, fora good portion of it has been re-
claimed from the river.

The Fall of Montgomedy.

OLLOW with the eye the single narrow street that skirts around
F the foot of Cape Diamond, hemmed in by the river until it is
compelled to hug the eliff for safety. That is Champlain street;

and in that narrow pass, immediately below the Citadel, the brave
Montgomery fell, mortally wounded, in the snow, at the head of his
men, in his rash and daring attack upon Quebec on the night of the
Sist December, 1776. He had hoped to surprise the battery that

guarded the narrow pass, under cover of the night and of a heavy
snow storm. His advance was seen, however, by the Sergeant in
charge of the battery, who reserved his fire until the brave Amer-
iean and his little band were close to the muzzles of the guns. Atthe
critical moment the word of command was given, and the cannon
and musketry belched out an unexpected fire.

Montgomery was one of the first to fall, and all who failed to
beat a precipitate retreat fell with him, literally mowed down by the
irresistible grape that swept the narrow gorge. His frozen body
was found next morning in the snow, and later we shall visit the
scene of the house, lately demolished, in whieh it was laid out, and
the site of the grave in which for forty-three years it lay buried.

The defeat of Montgomery and of the invading American army
was celebrated, in Quebee, on the anniversary of the fight, for
twenty-five years afterwards, by banquettings, dances, military re-
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views and religious services. On 81st Decomber, 1776, an officer
who was present in the Cathedral (the present Basilica), at the
thankagiving service condncted by the Bishop, records that “Eight
unfortunate Canadians, who had sided with the rebels, were present,
with ropes about their necks, and were forced to Jdo penance before
all in the church and erave pardon of their God, Church and King.”
Several years ago, some of the generous-heartod Irish Canadians, re-
sldents of that part of the city lying under the cliff, raised a sma

" subscription and erected with it upon the face of the rock, imm
diately overhanging the scene of Montgomery’s death, a large sigi
board, painted black, and bearing in raised gilt lotters the inseri
tion “ Here Montgomery Fell, Dec. 31st, 1775 Patriotie country-
men of the dead General, in response to the appeal of the gifted Mrs.
Isabel Garrison, of Chicago, who is supported in Canada by Sir Wil-
liam Van Horne, and in the United States by the descendants of
Montgomery and the Sons of the American Revolution, propose, if
accorded the site, to erect a suitable monument here to his memory,
The City Couneil of Quebec has unanimously given its approval to
the project at the request of the author of this book, acting on behalf
of the parties above referred to.

Ehueeh of Notée Dume de Vicinifed,

, LMOST directly below the north end of the Terrace where the b
cliff reccdes further from the river, and the streets and houses :

grow thicker together, is the little church of Notre Dame des o
Victoires. The building was until lately as plain within as it is e
without. In commemoration of the defeat of the English invaders \é‘
under Sir William Phipps in 1692, the féte of Notre Dame de la Vie-
toire was established, to be annually celebrated in this church on
the 7th of October; and after the shipwreck of the second English
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fleet of invasion in 1711, which the French colonists regarded as little
it anything less than a miraculous interposition in their favor, the
church received the name of Notre Dame dos Vietoires. During
Wolfe's siege of Quebee in 1759, its roof and upper portion were de-
stroyed by the fire of the Levis batteries. It was subscquently re-
built upon the old walls and durlng the year 1888 its interior was
neatly frescoed.

Champlain’g Old Foet.

around and below the Terrace. The large huilding imme-
diately below old Durbam Torrace, and a little to the south
of the Chureh of Notre Dame des Vietoires, is the Champlain Market
Hall. On market days there may be seen in the neighboring square
the picturesque speetacle of a number of habitant women-—the wives

THERE are any number of other historic recollections clustering

of French Canadian farmers—sitting selling the produce of their
gardens and dairies, which is piled in the boxes and bags by which
they are surrounded. The several small steamers lying five and six
abreast in two or three tiers at the market whart are the market
boats which brought the habitant women and their butter, eggs,
onions and homespun cloth from their riverside homes and farms,
Very near the present site of the market building there below,
Champlain, the zealous crusader, the bold explorer, the founder of
Quebee, erected his first building in 1608. It included a habitation, a
fort and stores. Gradually the land surrounding it was cleared of
trees and turned into a garden. One morning, while directing his
laborers, Champlain was called inside by one of his men, who reveal-
ed to him a conspiracy amongst some of his followers to murder their
commander and deliver Quebec into the hands, of some Basques and
Spaniards lately arrived from Tadoussac. One Duval, a locksmith,
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was the author of the plot, and so prompt was the action of the foun-
der of the little colony, that the conspirators were arrested the self-
same night, and soon Duval’s body was swinging from a gibbet, and
his hoad, says Parkman, “displayed on a pike, from the highest roof
of the buildings, food for birds and a lesson to sedition.”

The next land that was cleared in Quebee after that of which
Champlain had made a garden arvound his habitation was in rear of
where we are just now standing looking down at the Lower Town,
Let us turn avound and walk a few feet toward the site, It is now
covered by

The Pluce d’'Némed.
the little ring of green and trees, and gently playing fountain and by
the English Cathedral. On a portion of the land so cleared, Cham-
plain erected the

Chateau Bt. Ronig,

destined to be so famous in Canadian history. Its cellar still re-
mains under the wooden platform of the present Durham "Terrace,
adjoining the Chateau Frontenac.

We have just walked over it. Behind the Chateau was the area
of the fort, now the Place d’Armes or Ring. Let us pause a little
her, for we stand upon the site of the old fortress of Quebee, which
was for over two centuries the seat of the Canadian Government, and
during the various periods of its existence the seene of some of the
most stirring events in the History of New France.

Often, in its earlier days, were its torror-stricken inmates appall-
od at the daring adventures of the ferocious Iroquois, who, having
passed or overthrown all the French outposts, more than once
threatened the fort itself and massacred friendly Indians within
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sight of its walle. At a later era, when the colony had acquired
some military strength, the Castle of 8t. Louis was remarkable as
haviog been the site whenee the French Governors exereised an im-
mense sovereignty, extending from the mouth of the Mississippi
river to the great Canadian lakes, and thence along their shores and
those of the 8t. Lawrence to the Gulf of the same name.

Those interested in further details of the old fort will find it fully
deseribed in the entertaining pages of Parkman. (1)

1In 1690 the large hall of thé Castle witnessed an oxciting scene.
An English fieet under Sir William Phipps had sailed up the river
against Quebee. The Admiral sent a messenger ashore under a flag
of truee to demand the surrender of the garrison. He was conducted,
blindfolded, to the Castle, and when the bandage was removed from
his eyes, he found himself in the presence of the Governor, the
haughty Count de Frontenae, and his brilliantly uniformed officers,
He presented Phipps’ written summons to surrender, and domanded
an answer within an hour. Frontenae did not avail himself of the
proffered delay. He promptly told the messenger to return to his
master and inform him that he recognized no King of England but
James, and that Willlam of Orange was a usurper. Then being asked
if he would give his answer in writing, “ No,” replied Frontenac;
“ I will answer your General only by the mouth of my cannons.” And
he kept his word. Phipps made an ineffectual attempt to bombard
the city, but the guns from the fort poured shot into his vessels with
a deadly aim, carried away his ensign, disabled some of his ships,
and compelled him to beat so precipitate a retreat that his own
vossel out its cable and left its anchor behind it. (2)

(1) “ Old Régime ” in Canada, page 419.

(2) An int ing t of F! 's parley with the messenger from
Phipps, and the unsuccessful Siege of Quebec, in 1690, is to be found in Park~
man’s ** Frontenac and New France,” page 204,
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Aftor the British vietory of 1750 aud the consequent cession of
Canada by the French in 1760, the English Governors resided in the
Chateau 8t. Louis, and subsequently to 1791 it was ocoupied also by
the Executive Council. In 1808, the Castle was considerably enlarged
and ropaired, and then measured 200 foet long by 40 broad. It was
destroyed by fire in 1834, and Lord Durham caused the ruins to be
removed, and bullt the first Terrace, which was calldd after him.
The so-called Chateau, which until the month of March, 1801,
stood on the edge of the Terrace to our left as we leave the prome-
nade, was orected in 1784 by Sir Frederick Haldimand, Governor-
General, as a wing of the old castle. It was occupled by the Laval
Normal School up to the time that it was demolished, to make way
for the erection of the Chateau Frontenac. Haldimand Castle, its
predecessor, is thus described in Thompson's Diary:-* Haldimand
Castle soon became a building of note. On the 19th January, 1787,
the anniversary of the Queen’s Birthday, Charlotte of Mecklenburg,
consort of George IIl,—the first grand reception was held there, In
the following summer, the future monarch of Great .3ritain, William
IV (the Duke of Clarence), the sailor Prince, aged 22 years, visited
his father's Canadian lieges. Prince Wm. Henry had then landed on
the 14th of August, in the Lower Town, from H. M. frigate Pegasus.
Tradition repeats that the young Duke of Clarence enjoyed himself
amazingly among the beau-monde of Quebee, having eyes for more
than the seenic beauties of the ‘ancient eapital,’ not unlike other
worthy Princes who came after him. Among other festivities at
Quebec, Lord Dorchester, Governor-General, the suecessor to Sir
Frederick Haldimand, on the 215t August, 1787, treated H. R. High-
ness to a grand pyrotechnic display, Prince William and his com-
pany being seated on an exalted platform erected by the overseer of
publie works, James Thompson, over a powder magazine joining the
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end of the new building (Haldimand Castle), while fireworks were
displayed on an eminence fronting it below the old citadel.”” The
powder maguzine referred to is thought by the best authority to be
vaulted chambers which it was found necessary to demolish in order
to conform to the plans of the new hotel,

In the early part of the century there was a Riding School near
the site of the Chateau which was subsequently transformed into a
theatre, It was destroyed by fire in June, 1846, during & panoramic
performance, and from forty-five to fifty people perished in the

flames.
The English Cathedsul.

N or near the site now occupied by the English Cathedral, prob-
ably a little nearer the Terrace, and adjoining the Pluce
d’Armes or Ring, which alone separates it from Dufferin Tor-

race and the site of the old Chatean, formerly stood the ancient
chureh and convent of the Recoliet Fathers, which was destroyod by
fire in 1796. Before the erection of a Protestant Chureh in Quebec,
Protestant services were permitted at times by the Recollet Fathers,
in their old church.

The British Government took possession of the grounds after
the fire that destroyed the church. Father de Bérey, the Superior
and last survivor of the Recollet Fathers in Canada, was accorded a
pension by the British Government. He belonged to.a noble Fronch
family and was an ex-army chaplain. In Quebee he was on terms of
intimacy with the Duke of Kent and frequently entertained him at
dinner. Many instances of his brilliant wit are on record. Once he
was asked if he had heard of the arrival in town of a country priest
who was a noted gourmand and had a much greater weakness for
being entertained than for entertaining. “ Yes,” replied the Supe-
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rior, * I saw him to=day, going about seeking whom he may devour.”
On another occasion, when he was a vory old man, an oflicer at din-
ner askod him if the report was true that Napoleon had received a
dispensation from the Pope foethe French priests to marry, * Don't
you see,” sald the Father, “ that for me It would be only mustard
after dinner.” (1.)

At the suggestion of Bishop Mountain, the fivst Anglican Bishop
of Queboe, whose seo extended to the frozen ocoan on the north and
to the Pacific on the west, the Government of King Goorge 111 erect-
od the present Cathedral which was consserated in 1804, Itis a plain
though substantial stracture in the Roman style of architecture,
measuring 135 by 73 feet, Tt should be visited by tourists, not forits
architectural beauty, but for the splendor of its mural monuments,
chancel window and elaborate =olid silver communion servieo,
This latter, which is of exquisite workmanship, and cost £2,000 stor-
ling, attracted numbers of visitors while on exhibition in London,
where it was made by Rundell & Bridge. Togethor with the altar
cloth and hanging of the desk and pulpit, which are of erimson
valvet and eloth of gold, and the books for divine service, this com-
munion plate was a present from King George 1IL. There is in the
tower a very sweot peal of eight bolls, of which the tenor bell is
about 16 ewt. The church bas an excellont organ and a dean and
chapter with good cathedral choral services on Sunday even-
ings. The Dean, Rev. Dr. Norman, is also Rector of Quebec and
resides in the Rectory situated in the cathedral grounds. In the
chancel is a large marble monument in memory of the Right Rov.
Javob Mountain, first Bishop of Quebec, surmounted by the bust of
the first occupant of the see, who procured the erection of the build-
ing. The chancel window is a memorial of the third Bishop of vue

ﬂ) Mémoirves par P, Doﬂmp(-, page 65,
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Diocese, the late Dr. Johoshaphat Mountain. In both design and
coloring, it s consldered one of the richost ploces of stalned glass on
the continent. The eontral portion represents the Asconsion: the
Baptism and Traustiguration being vepresented in the sido windows,
On the other side of the ehancel from BishopJdacob Mountain's monu-
mont s that to his succossor, Bistop Stewart. Another marble
slab commamorntes the death of the Duke of Richmond and Lennox,
while Governor-General of Canada, which was cauged by hydropho-
bin, arising from the bite of & pet fox in 1319, and whose body reposes
in a vault beneath the chureh building. Other mural monuments
are in memory of Hon. Carleton Themas Monckton, fitth son of the
fourth Viscount Galway, and great nephew of the Hon, Brigadier
General Monkton, who suceeoded to the command of the British
Army upon the death of General Wolfe: of the late General Peter
Hunter, Lieut.~Goveruor of Upper Canada and Commander-in-chiof
of the forces: of Lient. Baines, of the Royal Artillery, who lost his
life in the great fire of 1866, which destroyed a large portion of 8t.
Roeh's suburbs, and of Major Short, whose body was blown into
fragments by a premature oxplosion of gunpowder while he was
gullantly fighting a conflagration in the suburbs of 8t. Sauveur,
Overhanging the ehancel are the remnants of two old and tattered
flags. These are the old colors of the 69th British regiment of foot
deposited here in 1870, by Licut.-Col. Bagot, on the oceasion of now
colors being peesented the regiment on the Esplanade hore, by
H. R. H. Prince Arthur. These warlike standards were deposited
in the Cathedral with elaborate ceremonial attended by a striking
military pageant. This is believed to be the only Cathedral on the
continent containing the colors of a British regiment of the line.
The Governor-General's pew is seen surrounded by curtains, in the
north gallery, and here have worshipped at various times, a number
of members of the Royal Family of Eugland. The pulpit has heen
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oceuplod by numbers of leading divines, including the late Dean
Ntanley, Archdencon Farear, and severnl Amervican Bishops. In ad-
dition to the magnificent linden trees ornamenting the Cathedral
enclosury, thero was a venerable el upon the grounds priorto
Beptember, 1843, in which month it was blown down, and beneath
whose umbiageous beanches, legend h. 1t that Jacques Cartler as-
sombled his followers upon thele first arrival in Canada, (1.)

TEHR
Couét Houge and Union Building,

THER noticeable bulldings upon the Place d’Armes, are the
new Court House, immediately south of the Cathedral, one of
the handsomest and most substantial of Quebee's modern edi-

fices, avd the old Upnion Bullding in the north-east corner of the
square, n.w owned and oceupled by the estate of D. Morgan, tailor
and outfitter, but in 1808, and for some time afterwards, the rendez-
vous of the famous Club of Barons. This Place d’Armes, which in the
time of the French was called the Grande Place, was the scene of
frequent military parades and a fashionable promenade. In 1650,
the Huron Indians, who had been driven from Lake Simcos, en-
camped bere.

The Pogt Office and Chien '@,

AKING leave for a while of the Place d’Armes and its wealth

of historical associations and surroundings, let us turn the
corner of the Union Building, to the north, for the brief ¥
space of a short block of lmildlngn. until we come to Buade streot, g

1) Slncu most of the .bove was vrman, Mr. F C. \Vnrulc.ol Quebeo. has
published a lecture upon the English Cathedral, in which may be found a
number sof historical details,

Al H e o b R
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#o called after Louis de Buade, Count of Frontenae, From each
quartor of the compass at theso croas streets, bistory and romance, the
attractions of nature as well as those of art, nets of hevolnm and deeds
of blood, relies of the past and rave historie treasures, the foot-priuts
of warriors, and the former surroundings of the early Jesuit mis-
slonary-martyrs, stand beckoning us onward. Which way shall we
take * We have loft behind us Dufferin Tervace and the Place d'Ar-
mes; in front is the Palace of the Cardinal, and further on the Grand
Battery and Laval University. On our left are the site of the old
Jesuit Barracks, the Basilica of Quebee and somo of the oldest res-
fdonces in Canada. On the right, and close to us, is the Post Office
Building, in the northern facade of which is the figure of a rather
tame-looking stone dog, gnawing a bone. And thereby hangs a tale.
Not to the dog alone, but to its ontire surroundings. This is how it
happened. And it came to pass under the French roghme, that the
proprietor of the old house that formerly stood upon the site of the
Post OMce, was namd Nicholas Jacquin Philibert, Now Philibert
had some disagreemant, some say with Pierre Logardour, Sieur de
Repentigny, an officer who had been quartered in his house;—ac-
cording to other writers, with Bigot, the Intendant or Lord-Lieu-
tenant himself. To revenge himsolf he placed this tablet in the front
of his house, with the accompanying lines:
Je suis un chien qui ronge 'os,
En le rongeant j2 prends mon repos,

Un temps viendra qui n'est pas venu,
Que je mordeay qui m'aurs mordu.
1736,

which may be translated as follows:

I am a dog gnawing a hone,

While 1 gnaw I take my repose,

The time will come, though not yet,
When I will bite him who now bites me,

L 77 R
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Wilder versions state that Philibert was assassinated by Logar-
deur, and that Philibert's brother or sou pursued the assnssin to
Europe, and laver to Pondicherry, Fast Indies, and slow him. 1f
ther« be any truth in this story, the killing of de Repentigny could
not have been prioe to 1760, since his name oocurs upon the list of
those officers who verved under the Chevalier de Levis at the battie
of St. Foye, on the 2sth April, 1700, Le Moine has an Interesting
chapter on Le Chien d'Or (1) which took its name from the fact that
the sculptured tigure of the dog seems always to have been, as now,
in gilt,

F. Kirhy, of Niagara, has woven inte the warp of this tragie
stoey, 8 marvellous romance of the time of Bigot, and introduced
into it many of the lending characters that figured in Queben, nearly
a contury and a half ago. (2)

H. R. H. Princess Louise, when in Canade, assured Mr. Kirby of
the pleasure with which Queen Victoria had read his intoresting his-
torieal novel.

Before and for a long time after the siege of 1759, when Quebee
fell into the hands of the British, the old building was used as g
coffee-house, while from 1776 to 1800, it was known as Freemasous'
Hall, and the lodges in Quebec held their meetings there. The pro.
prietor of the house in 1782, was Miles Prontice, himself a Freemason
and formerly a sergeant in the 78th regiment under Wolfe. He had
oither a daughter or a niece of remarkable beauty and in the bloom
of youth. The immortal Nelson, theu the youthiul commander of

the * Albermarle, " a frigate of 26 guns, conveyed some merchants-
men to Quebec in 1762 and was one of the habitués of Prentice’'s
Hotel. The future admirer of Lady Hamilton was so smitten with

m Soe “ The history of an Old Houase,” in LeMoine’s Maple hm-u, ouehoe,
1873, page
2 The * okden Do, by B. Kirby. :
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the young lady that he offered her iiarriage. Ris frionds, however,
suceoeded in withdrawing him from the sway of a passion which
threatenod to destroy his carcer, and Miss Prentice becamo, later,
the wife of a distinguishod ofticer, Major Mathews, Governor of
Chelsen Hospital, England. 1n the pages of “I/Album du Touriste,”
(1) is & reference to a sound cowhiding, which the Duke of Clarence,
aftorwards William IV, received in this neighborhood, at the hand of
an irritated father, whose daughter, the Duke was in the act of fol-
lowing too closely.

But turn to the cast. 'What a unique termination! It ends in a
ataircase! And yet it is not 8o unique after all in Quebee. Three or
four other streets do the same, serving to remind the tmvpller of
those in Guernsey or Malta. We shall scarcely have time to de-
scend the stairs just now into Mountain Hill, so will satisfy ourselves
with the view tobe had from their summit. Feast the eye for a few
minutes upon the magniticent scene of river and island and ship-
ping and opposite shore that forms the picture here spread out be-
foreus! And yet it is one of a hundred equally beautiful views to be
had from various points of the heights of Quebec. This vacant space
on the opposite side of the street, surrounded by iron railings is

The gite of the Old Buflinment Honge

served as thestudio of the artists of Confederation. Within its
walls was moulded the form of that constitution which united in
one Dominion, the scattered North Ameriecan colonies comprised be-
tween the Atlantic and Pacific Oceans, while securing to the people
of sach, their own provincial autonomy and selt-government in local

THE building which was here destroyed by fire in April, 1883,

(). “LAlbum du Towriste,” by J. M. LeMoine, Quebec, 1872, page 45,
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affairs. ‘This parliament house was constructed in 1350 and 1860, at

over,
vhich a cost of $60,000, to replace the former one, also destroyed by firve.
later, On a portion of this site was the first cometery used by the early
wr of ! French settlers, and in a corner of this eometery is supposed to have
iste,” been the tomb of Samuel de Champlain, founder of Quebee. Such, at
rence, all ovents, is the very reasonable conclusion to which Dr. Harper
md of has arrived, after a minute investigation of the theories and writings
f fol- on the subject, of Abhés Laverdiéro and Casgrain, of Mossrs. Cau-
chon, Drapeau aud Dionne. The citizens of Quebec, under the pres-
i in a idoncy of Judge Chauvean, are about to erect a monument of Cham«
'be or plain at a cost of $30,000, near the site of the old Chateau 8t. Louis,
or of batween Dufferin Terrace and Place d’Armes, and close to the Ter-
to de- race entrance to the Chateau Fronteuac.
selves
a fow The Cardinal’s Pulace,
n: hl::. E may row retrace our steps to the cross road, where we
i tobe stood a tew minutes ago, and continuing along Fort street,
space by which we left the Place d’Armes at the Union Building,
is and which was so called because it led from the Lower Town landing
to the Fort, wo have in front of us the ontrance gates of the
;‘gg palace of the first Canadian Cardinal,—His Eminence Cardinal
Taschereau,—a large and handsome stone building. Quebecers will ;
1, 1883, not soon forget the elaborate fétes and ceremonial which marked, in
hinits 1886, the conferring of the barretta upon His Eminence.
itedin The throne room of the palace is a very handsome apartment, all :
ed be- its furniture and hangings being of cardinal red. Protestants as k
people well as Roman Catholics pay their respects to Cardinal Taschereau -
n local when he bolds his receptions here, for, in addition to the personal &

popularity of the Canadian Prinee of the Church, his eiovation to the
cardinalate is considered by all Quebocers as a signal honor confer-

45,
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red by Rome upon Canada.  Continuing on our way past the palace
gates, we quickly arrive at

The iraud Batteru.

ERE, on the veryedge of the cliff overlooking the river, are
mounted in a long row, a number of heavy guns. They are
now of obsoletepattern, however, and would be of little service

in action. The road is narrow and winding, and from it may be had
o splendid view of the river and surrounding country. At intervals,
too, platforms provided with seats have beon erected. The grounds
of Laval University are separated from the Battery by a bigh stoue
wall. The tourist will find much to interest him and delight the eye,
by sitting and resting awhile upon one of the Grand Battery beuches,
if he has the necessary time at his disposal, before returning to his
hotel for luncheon. He will be glad of the rest, too, if he has taken
us for a guide all morning, and must have spent a rather busy half
day, in seoing and examining what we have pointed out to him since
he left his hotel after breakfast, en route for Dufferin Tervace. There
is, too, a something in the air here, eall it ozone, if you will, that no
matter how late you take your breakiast, will ensure you a good
appetite for lunch by one o’clock. If you have followed the directions
herein so far contained, you may not have walked a mile in all, yet
you have made good use of your time, and have the satisfaction of
knowing that you have gained a wealth of historic and legendary
lore, that no intellectual traveller of the present day can afford to be
without.

The afternoon of the first day in Quebec cannot be better spent
anywhere, than in either the Basilica or Laval University, both of
which are within five minutes’ walk of the Chateau Frontenae,
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The Bamilicu.

HE construction of the old Cathedral of Quebec was commenced
in 1647, (1) and it was consecratod in 1666, by Mounseigneur

Laval, the first Lishop of the colony. As early, however, ns 1645, the
French Governor de Montmagny, and theinhabitants of the city, had
appropriated the proeeeds of twelve hundred and fifty beaver skins
to the building of the church. ‘The first mass was said in it on the
24th Decomber, 1650, by Rev. Father Poucet, who also celebrated
midnight mass the same night. The definite opening of the sacred
odifice took place on the 818t March, 1657, and it has never since clogsed
its doors, except for the making of the ropairs necessitated by the
disastrous effocts of the siege of 1739, The original diocese of Quebec
when this, its metropolitan church, was erected, comprised the ter-
ritory now occupicd by no less than sixty dioceses. The history of
this old chureh is, to a great extent, the history of Canada, and of
civilization in America. A flood of memories comes to the mind of
the student of history upon examining the records of the groat men
of New Frauce whose bones repose within its walls, and whose deeds,
whether in the evangelization of the Indians, at the eost, in many in-
stances, of martyrdom, or in the heroie defence of their country
against itnpossible odds, have excited the sympathy and admira-
tion of succeeding generations. The church authorities have pre-
served these records of a memorable past by erecting tablets on the
walls of the church, to the memory of the Jesuit and Recollet mis-
sionaries and of the four French governors whose bones arve interred

heneath the building.

(1) The corner stone was Iaid by Father Lallemant, Superior of the Jesuits,
whose brother was tortured to death by the Iroquois, and by M. de Montmagny,
Governor of the colony and n Knight of Malta, on the 23rd September, 1747,
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T'he design of the chancel is in imitation of that of 8t. Poter's at
Rome. 'This church superseded the ehapel of the Jesuits' College,
which was for some time used as the parochial chureh of Quebee,
It was not till 1874, that the sacred edifico was raised to the dignity of
a Basilica. It has sufforod mueh from fires occasioned by the storm-
ing of the city during the several sieges through which it has passed,
but the foundations aud parts of the walls are still the same, having
now existed for nearly two and a half conturies. In the yard at the
back of the presbytery adjoining the chancel, and immediately in
rear of the Basilica, aro still to be found the relics of the foundation
walls of the chapel, built by Champlain in 1688, in commemoration of
the recovery of the country the year before from the English, into
whose hands it had fallen in 1620, This chapel was called by Cham-
plain the “Chapelle de la Recouvrance,” and was for the time being,
the parish church of Quebee. It was destroyed by fire i’ 1640, The
founder of Quebee had erected a still earlier chapel in the Lower
Town, in 1615, near where is now the foot of the Dufferin Terrace
elevator, but it was destroyed, together with Champlain’s other
buildings in thie Lower Town, in the siege of 1629,

The Basilica is 216 feet in length by 108 in breadth, and is capable
of aceomodating 4,000 worshippers. It cannot boast of much external
symmetry, and is distinguished rather for solidity and neatness,
than for splendor or regularity of architecture. Within it is very
lofty,with massive arches of stone dividing the naves froim the aisles,
There is, however, mueh more than its antique and internal beauty,
to attract the attention of tourists. It contains some of the most ve-
markable and valuable objects of art on the continent. Upon its
walls hangs a rich collection of paintings, most of them by noted
European masters and invaluable as works of art. These were mostly
secured by Canadian priests in France, after the Reign of Terror in
1793, in which the ordinances of religion were prohibited and the
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property of churches and mounasteries, in Paris, confiscated and
seattored,  One, however, has a most remarkable history of its own.
This Is the magnificent canvas that hangs over the high altar and
has for its subject the Immaculate Conception. It is supposed to be
after Lebrun, if not the actual handiwork of the great master,

More than a hundred years ago, it came into the possession of a
family npamed Lemaistre, residing on the Island of Guernsey, in
what manner is now unknown, though it is supposed to have been
captured from some French vessel, during a naval skirmish. At all
evenis, it was considered of no great value, for it remained for a
period rolled up in an attie room, which was used as a receptacle
for old furniture, costumes of former days and other curiosities,
Captain Lemaistre, the son of the proprietor, was, in1770, in Quebee.
Here he was Deputy Adjutant-General of the forces and secrotary
of the Lieutenant-Governor. When Lieutenant-Governor Cremahe
was recalled to England, and succeeded by Liecutenant-Governor
Hamnilton, Lemaistre remained in Canada with the new Governor.
His heart had erossed the sea, however, in the ship that took his old
master home, having followed the pretty niece of Mr. Cremahe, Mar-
garet Stuart, with whom he was desperately in love. Margaret was
educated at the Ursuline Convent, and while there abjured Pro-
tostantism and was baptized in the convent chapel. Young Le-
maistre had an intimate friend in a young ecclesiastic, then secre-
tary to the Roman Catholic Bishop, Mgr. Briand, and to him he con-
fided his secret. Mpr, Plessis had heard tie story of Margaret Stuart
and the convent, and when the gallant young captain explained why
he was 80 anxious to obtain leave of absence to visit England, his
friend replied, *“But Captain Lemaistre, I canunot wish you success
in this matter unless you become a Catholie,” and Lemaistre, who was
naturally enough ready to promise anything just then, said that he
would think about it. And so it happened, for Mgr. Briand was very
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friendly with General Haldimand, that Lemalstre obtained leave of
absence, and upon reaching England, was married to Miss Stuart.
The honeymoon was spent in Guernsey, and one day, when ransack-
ing the contents of the attic chamber, the bride came upon the re-
ligious picture. A wave of loving memory of far away Quebec
swept over the young girl’'s heart, and she begged to be allowed to
keep the canvas. It was 1798 when the Lemaistres returned to
Quebee, and the picture was rolled up and taken with them. The
Captain was now the Governor of Gaspé, but the office was a sine-
cure, and he took a house in Ste, Famille street, in this eity. In the
meantime, the young secretary of Mgr. Briand, and future Bishop of
Quebee, had been raised to the dignity of the priesthood, and in the
spring of 1792, had been appointed Curé of Quebee. Monsieur le Curé
was naturally one of the first callers upon Captain and Mrs. Le-
maistre, and the latter, produciig the roll of canvas, asked his ac-

ceptance of the picture. “I will accept it gratefully,” said the priest,
“but not for myself, for another.” It was framed and sent to him,
and some days later he asked Captain and Mrs. Lemaistre to pass
with him into the sanctuary of the Cathedral, and there, behind the
altar, he showed them their picture, saying, with one of his bright
smiles, “It is bettor to give to God than to man.” (1)

Amongstthe other paintings in the Basilica there is a Christ, but
very different from the pictures of the Saviour with which the publie
may be familiar. This is the famous Van Dyck, and shews the son
of GGod on the cross. It was painted in 1630, and presents a type of

(1) Much of the legendary coloring of the above story is drawn from a sketeh
entitled “ La Légende d’un Tableau,” first published in a Qaebec newspaper in
1888, and for a copy of which the present writer is indebted to its author, Alder-
man Gagnon,—a well-known bibliophile of Quebec, whose brother, Mgr. Gag-
non, is the secretary of Cardinal Taschereau,
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the best Flemish school. The collection in this church belongs to
the lot of paintings which Abbé Desjarding secured for a song,
from the revolutionists of 1793, when the mob pillaged the churches
and monasteries in their madness. Imagine Van Dycks, Fleurets,
Blanchards, Lebruns, Marettis, Vigoons, Restouts and Hallés, drop-
ping into a Canadian Chureh for a few thousand franes ! T'wo or three
of these pictures to-day would bring the price, if sold at auction,
which the whole collection cost. The rarvest pictures in the clity
hang in the Basilica, and one may spend hours looking at them and
contemplating the genius of their authors. Indeed, should one
arrive at Quebec on a rainy day, the time could not be more pleas-
antly and profitably spent than by making the round of the picture
gallerles, all, save the elaborate collection at Laval University, being
tree to all. It would be better to reserve a fine bright day for Laval,
for the pictures in that galiery should be seenby a good light.
Catalogues of the pietures in the Basilica are furnished to visitors.
The sacred vestments may be seen on application to the verger.
They contain several sets presented to Bishop Laval by the great
Louis XIV, including one set in beautiful and very valuable good
brocade. His Eminence Cardinal Taschereau frequently officiates
in the Basilica in full canonicals.

The Seminary Chapel,

adjoining the Basilica, is a handsome new edifice only completed in
1891, and replaces that destroyed by fire a foew years ago with a
number of valuable art treasures that it contained, ineluding a Sa-
viour by Lagrence, and a representation of the Ascension by P.
Champagne.

There are also here a number of supposed relics of the Savionr’s
passion, including portions of the cross, of the crown of thorns
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and of the seamless robe, and a rich reliquary presented to the
Sominary by Pope Leo X111, heavily jowelled and valued at $50,000.
Both the Basilica and the Seminary Chapel face upon

The Old Muarhet Squnve.

ERE in bygone days the French-Canadian habitants’ wives
ﬂ used to sit in their carte or sleighs on market days, peddling
out their farn: produce to frequenters of the market, just as
their successors do to-day on the oxisting markets outside St. John's
gate and in Lower Town and 8t. Roche. This old market datod back
to about 1686, and in 1844, covered wooden stalls for the accommoda-
tion of butchers were erected on the portion nearest Anne street,
which was the site of the old Josuit Chureh, They were torn down
in 1877, when the new stone market building, called after Montealm,
was erected near 8t. John's gate. What a variety of scones, tragie,
gay, martial and religious, has this old square witnessed! Hore in
olden times stood the pillory used for the punishment of thieves and
perjurers, and De Gaspé tells us in his memoirs that when he was a
boy it was scarcely a month without a vietim.

An fudian Wae Dance.

NDIAN alarms were froquent at Queboc hetween 1650 and 1660,
I and lively scenes more than once occurred as the Iroquois in-
vaders sought to surprise the Fort, and drove into its shelter

the Hurun refugees that were encamped between it and the Jesuits’
College. Do Gaspé tells of an exciting seene he witnessed on the
old market place on a Sunday afternoon towards the end of the last
century. A number of Indians who were then encamped near Indian
Cove, on the Levis side of the river, landed in town and ran so ex-
citedly through the streets as to cause some inquietude to the com-
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mandant of the garrison, who immediately doubled the guards at
the gates of the city and of the barvacks. They wore but shirts and
trousers, and hanging from the waists of many of them were human
scalps, showing that they had participated in the recent war between
the English and Americans. They were armed with tomabawks, thelr
bodies were tattoed, their faces were painted in black and red, in
which colors they appearcd well detormined to paint the whole town
too, After dancing in small groups before the residences of the prin-
cipal official personages, they finally assembled, to the number of
fonr or five hundred warriors, no women having accompanied them,
and 1 their hid war dance in front of the Basilica,
where the fountain is now situated, just as the faithful were emerg-
ing from the church after vespers. First there was the representa-
tion of a council of war, with harangues from their chief, then they
marched around in single file after him imitating with their toma-
hawks the motion of paddies propelling a canoce. The refrain of their
song was, “Sahontes! Sahontes! Sahontes! oniakerin ouatehi-chi-
cono-ouatche!” then at a signal of their chief, there was absolute
silence, until a general sniffing in the air indicated that they felt the
approach of the enemy. All at once the chief gave a frightful yell
which the others repeated in chorus, and darting amongst the spec-
tators, brandishing awhile his deadly weapon, he seized hold of a
young man, whom be slung over his shoulder and ran back into the
cirele of his warriors. Then placing his supposed victim down with
his face to the ground, the Indian kpelt over him, and made as
though he was removing his scalp, subsequently appearing to slit
open his body, and with his hand as a ladle to drink the blood of his
enemy. Some of the more distant spectators feared a tragedy in-
stead of a burlesque, and shouted, “save yourself my little Petor,
they will skin you like an eel.” With a dexterous movement and a
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shout of triumph, the Indian had quickly turned himsolf about, and
drawn from his side a human sealp which he hold alofL as a proof of
vietory, and which had been painted a bright vermillion to give it a
more ghastly and natural appearance. Little Peter lost no time, on
finding himself released, in dashing out of harm's way, and making
his escape through the crowd of speetators, (1)

The Nugelua.

HOSE ‘vho have seen Millet's celebrated painting, may like to
know of another Angelus painted by De Gaspé, (2) but the scone
of which is placed upon this vld Market Place, instead of in

the green flelds of old France. The subject dates back nearly a
hundred years. Listen to the word painting of our author: “It is
noon: the Angelus sounds from the belfry of the Cathedral: all the
bells of the town announce the salutation of the Angel to the Mother
of Christ, the beloved patroness of the Canadians. The habitants,
whose vehicles surround the stalls, uncover their heads and devoutly
recite the Angclus. Everybody follows the same worship: nobody
vidicules this pious custom. Certain Christians of the nineteenth
century seem to be ashamed of practising a religious act before any-
body else. It is to say the least a proof of a weak and contracted
spirit. The disciples of Mahomet, more courageous, pray seven
times a day, and that in all localities, and in the very presence of
timid Christians.”

(1) “lLies Anciens Canadiens,” par Philippe Aubert De Gaspé, Quebee, 1877,

page 132.

2) ** Les Anciens Canadiens,” page 10. An admirable translation of De
Gaspé's entrancing work, entitled : “The Canadians of Old,” from the pen of
Professor Chas. G. D. Roberts, F.R.8.C., of King’s College, Windsor, Nova
Scotia, the gifted Canadian poet, was issued in 1800 by the Appletons.
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In the early part of the contury, a small stream ran across the
square in front of the barracks, from the direction of 8t. Louis street
and down Fabrique street, eventually emptying Itself into the St,
Oharles. A few old French houses are still found facing the square
amongst the modern bulldings which De Gaspé quaintly deseribed
as “reaching towards heaven as though they feared another deluge.”

One of these Is the well-known tok blish tof Mr, Grondin,
which was the scene of the first Quebec restaurant, kept in 1648 by
one Jacques Bolsdon, then having the sign * Au Baril 4'0r,” with
the added words, “J'en bois done.” Jacques Boisdon bad the right
by deed, signed by M. d’Ailleboust, Pére Lallemand, and the Sieurs
Chavigay, Godfroy and Giffard, to serve his guests, provided it was
not during 1aass, the sermon, catechism, or vespers. To the north
of the Bquare are the stores of Messrs, Fisher & Blouin, saddlers,
where, in 1810, resided General Brock, the hero of Queenstown
Holghts.

Immediately opposite to the Basilics, on the other side of the
Market Square, is Quebec’s new City Hall, occupying the former

site of

Fhe Old Fezuits’ College.

IS famous establishment dates back to 1637, the year before
John Harvard made his bequest to the University that now
bears his name. Twelve arpents of land were here granted to
the Jesuit Fathers, who had received as early as 1626, when Quebec
contained but fifty souls, a gift of sixteen thousand écus d’or towards
the intended structure, from a young nobleman of Picardy, Réné de
Rohault, son of the Marquis de Gamache, who was about taking the
Jesuit vows of poverty, chastity and obedience. The college was
destroyed by fire in 1640. The new edifice which replaced it was
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Inrgoly robullt in 1720. Ta 1763 it was takon possession of by the
British Governor Murreay for the accommodation of troops, and was
subsequently known as the Josuit Barracks, When, in 1870, the
Imperinl forees wore withdrawn from Canada, the property passed
into the y jon of the Canadian Government, and a fow years
later the bullding was declared unsafe, and ordored to be demolished,
Yet, when the vandals eame to destroy It, the abundant use of dyna-
mite was necessary to undo the work of the Jesult Masons of 240
yoars befure—"cemented,” as an American poet (1) has said, “by the
best blood of eenturies.” It occupled the four sides of & square and
revelled in iImmense corvidors and gloomy passages while improg-
nable vaults and colls ab led in the b nt.

In lovelling the foundations of that part of the building that
formed the private chapel of the Josuits, the workmen discovered,
still resting upon the remains of the coftins in which they were in-
terved nearly two and a quarter centuries before, the skelotons of
the only three members of the Jesuit Order ever intovred there,
namely, those of Brother Jean Liegeols, the architect of the structure
that for 224 years was both his monument and tomb, of Fathor Jean
de Quen, the founder of the Tadoussac Mission, and the discoverer of
Lake 8$t. John, and of Father Frangois Du Peron, one of the most
active promoters of the Jesuit Misston to the Hurons. (2) All three
skoletons were perfect to the smallest bone, wben found, with the

‘exception of t hat of Frore Liegeois which lacked the skull. His cold-

(1) Jonquin Miller.

(2) A complete recital of this discovery is to be found in u report to the
Provincial Gov by Mr. N. Faucher de 8t. Maurice, F.R.8.0.,0x-M.P.P.,
Knight of the Legion of Honor, ete., who superintended the search. Sece *Rela-
tion de ce gui s'est passé lors des fouilles faites par ordre du Gouvernement dans
wne partie des fondations dv College des Jésuites de Québeey” par Fancher de
St, Maurice, Québec, 1879,
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blooded murder by the Iroquols invadors of the Christion Huron
settlomont at Billory ocourred ou the 20th May, 1605. His head was
severed from bis body and earried some distance away, and his sealp
horne off Inteiumph. (1) The three skeletons in question, after having
mysteriously disappeared for nearly twelve yoar, were flually ine
terred In a vault in the Chapel of the Ursuline Convent, on the 12th
May, 1801, A magnificent public funeral marked the transiation of
the remains, and the Government of the Provinee of Quebee erected
a mural monument bearing a suitable inseription to their memory, in
the sanctuary inquestion, and almost immediately oppositeto that in
memory of General Montealm,

In 1888, the Inte Prime Minister Mercior passed an act through
the Provincial Legislature, to compensate the Jesuits for the loss of

t

i this and other of their property in Cannda, which had long ago been

e declared forfeited to the Crown. A good deal of bigotry and fanat-

' felsm was aroused throughout the country by this settloment, but

» though strongly urged to veto the measure, both the Governmentat

0 Ottawa and Lord Stanley of Preston, the then Governor-General,

n declined to doso. s

of .

. City  FHull.

:: ROUND was brokenin the latter part of 1804 for the construetion

1 of the new City Hall,and at present writing the building is still
incomplete. It is of & mixed style of architecture, with the .

- Norman predominating and measures 200 feet upon the old Market

ke Square, 120 upon St Anne street, and 178 upon Fabrique stroet. The

-,"

- (1) For further particulars of bis death and burial, and of the lives, ad-

z ventures and deuth of Fathers DeQuen and DuPeron, see A story of three

skeletons,” by E.T. D. Chambers, in *“The Week,” Toronto, of July 3lst, 1801,
4
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stone used in its construction comes from Deschambault, excopt
that in the foundations, which is from quarries at Beauport and
Chateau Richer. The building is to be three stories high with
basement and attics. It will not only contain the City Council
chamber, Mayor’s office and space for the accommodation of all the
officors and departments of the civic government, but also the
Reeorder’s Court and the central fire and police stations.

8. N. Parent, Esq., member of the Legizlative Assembly, is Mayor
of the city, and the Municipal Councilover which he presides consists
of thirty members, three for each ward of the city. Ten are called
Aldermen and twenty Councillors. The present members are Alder-
men J. A. Bélanger, S8amuel Bussiéres, Frangois Delille, Narcisse
Dion, jor., Dr. Michel Fiset, Philéas Gagnon, Bernard Leonard,
George Madden, Hon. John Sharples, M.L.C., George Tanguay, and
Councillors C. Panet-Angers, Q.C., R. P. Boisseau, L. A. Boisvert,
Archibald H. Cook, Q.C., J. B. Coté, P. J. Coté, Jean Drolet, T, Du-
chaine, Nap. Dussault, J. H. Gignac, Daniel Griffin, J. E. Martineau,
Geo. Piquet, Elzéar Pouliot, Noél Rancour, Edward Reynolds, Law-
rence Stafford, Q.C., Jules Tessier, M.P.P,, Misaél Thibaudeau and
Elzéar Vincent.

The leading otficials of the City Corporation are His Honor E. A.
Déry, Recorder; H. J. J. B. Chouinard, City Clerk; C. J. L. Lafrance,
City Treasurer; J. G. Leiteh, City Auditor; Chevalier Chs. Baiilargé,
F.R.S8.C, City Engineer; J. Gallagher, Water Works Engineer; Col.
L. P. Vohl, Chief of Police; P. Dorval, Chief of the Fire Brigade.

The total estimated value of the real estate in the city of Quebec
is abont $36,500,000. Of this, some four millions represents the value
of property belonging to the Corporation, which may be set against
the city’s bonded debt of $6,368,808. Out of the remaining $32,500,000
worth of real estate, only little over twenty-five million dollars
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worth is subject to assessment for purposes of muuicipal taxation;
the unassessed property, which is valued at over $7,313,000, consisting
of Roman Catholic Church and School property and charitable
institutions, estimatod at $2,781,140, Protestant institutions at $499,280,
Federal Government property, including the Citadel and fortifica~
tions, $2,316,800, Local Government property, including Parliament
Buildings, &ec., $1,776,000
The net revenue of the Corporation for 1894-95 was $627,000. The
assessment on real estate is 17% cents in the dollar upon the annual
value or rental. Business men pay a business tax, also based upon
their rental, of 12!4 cents in the dollar. The water-works are the
property of the Corporation,and all eitizens pay for that commodity
at the rate of 124 per cent upon their rental. School taxes are col
lected by the Corporation and handed over to the Roman Catholie
and Protestant Boards of School Commissioners respectively. The
present rate upon Roman Catholics is 234 per cent upon their rental,
and upon Protestants 8 per cent.

Quebecers owe a debt of gratitude to Mayor Parent and the mem-
bers of tho present City Council, which is the first municipal adminis-
tration that has kep! the expenditure within the revenue, thus put-
ting an end to a long term of annual deficits in the municipal budget.

Eaval Univergity.

0 cultivated visitor can afford to leave Quebec without inspect-
N ing the famous University of Laval, with its rave art treasures
and varied historical associations. It has a main entrance on

the Grand Battery, as already described, but may, too, be reached by
along passage from the Seminary, whose gates adjoin the front of the
Basilica on the Market Square. At least half a day, or better, a whole
day, should be devoted to this visit. The university proper is known,
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somoetimes, as the major seminary. The minor seminary, which, as
alroady explained, adjoins it, is interesting to Americans, as having
been the scene of the confinement of the American officors taken pris-
oners during the siege of the city by Arnold and Montgomery in
1775. 1t was founded in 1668, by Mgr. de Montmoreney Laval, first
Roman Catholie Bishop of Quebec and ot Canada, who was allied to
the royal family of France, and who left the greater part of his
Janded and other property to endow the institution. ‘ihe original
seminary building was destroyed by fire in 1701, and the university
received its royal charter in 1852, and thereupon assumed the name
of Laval. The university buildings are three in number, the princi-
pal having been erected in 1857. The mainedifice is 198 feet in length,
60 in width, and 80 in height, and viewed from the river, Is, after the
Citadlel, the most promioent building in the eity. The buildings alone
of the university and seminary are valued at over a million dollars,
The university consists of four faculties,--Theology, Law, Medicine
and Art, there being thirty-four professors aud nearly three hundred
students. Seven colleges and seminavies arve affiliated with the
university, There are several large halls, containing the museums
of Geology, Natural History, Arts and Scienees, The Picture Gallery
is yearly receiving lavge additions, while the library is the largest
in Canada next to that in the House of Parliament at Ottawa, and
contains 100,000 volumes, being also rich in valuable MSS relating to
the early history of the eountry. From the promenade on the roof
a magnificent view of the valley of the St. Charles and down the 8t.
Lawrence can be had.

The musenm contains 1,000 instruments in the department of
physics, 8,000 specimens in mineralogy and geglogy: the botanical
department, a large and remarkeble collection of Canadian woods,
artiticial fruit, and 10,000 plants: zoology, over one thousand stuffed
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birds, o large number of quadrupeds and thousands of fishes, inseects,
ote. Then there are Egyptian mummies, Indian skulls and weapons,
and a varioty of other curios, eoins, medals, ete. Admission to the
picture gallery is obtained on payment of a small fee. This gallery
merits a protracted visit, both ancient and modern art being well
represented, and though the showing of water colors is not strong,
o few vory good things may be seen. 1In oils, we have the work of
such artists as Rosa Bouheur, Daniel Mytens, T. Daniel Logaré, Sal-
vator Gastiglione, H. Vargason, Mounticelli, Monnyer, Karl Vernet,
Lucatelli, Salvatoro Rosa, David Teniers, Van Mullen, John Opie,
Peter Yan Blwmen, Le Jeune, Vouet, Antoine Van Dyek, Pisanello
Vittore, Tintoretto, ¥. Boucher and others. Catalogues may be had
on applications

RBound about the Chatean Hrontenac,

HE Chateau Frontenae, as already related, is built upon historie
T ground, and you may stand upon the street in front of it, and
soe elustered around in close proximity a dozen or more local-

ities redolent with memories of a romantic past.

Opposite to the Court House, on its St. Louis street side, we come
first to the high-peaked antique Commissariat building, fitted out
with solid iron shutters by the Imperial Government in the early
part of the century, for the safe-keeping, before the era of banks and
poliee in Quebec, of the specie to be paid out to the troops and army
contractors. Immediately beyond it is Kent House, the town resi-
dence of H. R. H. the late Duke of Kent, when commander of the
British troops in Canada. The old St. Louis Hntel building, now a
boarding house, comes next, and the small low bu:lding immediately
opposite the ladies’ entrance, occupied as a shaving saloon, is report-
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od to have been at one time the headquarters of General Montcalm.
Between it and the Court House is

The Magouic Hall.

TS ground floor containg general American and Canadian railway
and steamship offices. The ball contains, in its lodge room, some
curious old chairs, covered with masonic devices, presented by

the Queen’s uncle, the Duke of Sussex, in 1807, to Sussex lodge, now
8t. Andrews No. 6 on the Registry of the Grand Lodge of Quebes;
for both the royal Duke and his brother, the Duke of Kent, were
zealous Freemasons.

The Veaudemy of Mugic.

MMEDIATELY adjoining the old St. Louis Hotel, on the westerly
! side, is the Academy of Music. It is the popular place of amuse-
ment here, and since it has always had the reputation of being
oceupled by first-class companies, performers are usually greeted
with large andiences.
Two doors past the Academy there was demolished in 1893, a h
relic of “Ye olden times” in the shape of a little one storey house
. with high gables, that denoted the earliest style of French Canadian
architecture. This was, according to Le Moiuve, the house in which
the chivalrous Montcalm breathed his last. It will be remembered
by those who have carefully studied the events of the memorable
13th of Beptember, 1759, that Wolle’s intrepid rival rode in from his
last battlefield, on his black charger, mortally wounded, and sup-
ported by two grenadiers, through 8t. Louis Gate, and on this very
street told some poor women who were horritied at his appearance
and called out that he was killed, not to weep for him as he was not
seriously hurt. It is recorded that he expired at an early hour the
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noxt morning, and it is believed that his death must have occurred
in Dr. Arnoux’s, into which he was earried, ard which was situated
inthis old building, later the office of a livery stable and now replaced
by & modern structure.

In the early part of this eentury, Queen Vietoria’s father, the
Duke of Kent, trequently visited the old building, to inspeet the
work of Mr. F. Baillargé, a member of the Royal Academy of Paint-
ings and Sculptures of France, and grand uncle of Chevalier Bail-
largé, City Engineer of Quebec. Frangois Baillargé was a sculptor
and mado several of the statues in the Basilica. (1)

Immediately opposite, is the short street leading to the Ursuline
Convent, known as Parloir street, on the north-west corner of which
lived the Abbé Vignal, previous to his joining the Sulpicians in
Montreal. In October, 1661, he was captured by the Iroquois at La
Prairie de la Madeleine, near Montreal, roasted alive and partly
caten by those fiends incarnate. This street was originally called
“au parloir,” because it is the site of the foot-path that led * to the
parlor” of the convent.

The VPfBuline Gonvent.

HIS convent, founded in 16:; by Madame de la Peltrie, is one of
the most ancient in Canada. Buill at first in 1641, it was de-
stroyed by fire in 1650: rebuilt, it met witha similar fate in 1686.

The foundations of that of 1641, and the walls of that of 1650 being
used, a third structure was erected aiter the fire, and is stiil to be seen
in rear of the modern wing, facing Garden and Parloir stroets, The
convent buildings, a pile of massive edifices of stone, two and three

(1) Biography of Chas, Baillargé, by Edgar La Selve, published by “ I
Revue Exotique Illustrée,”” of Paris, page §.
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storios high, are evected on ground covering an arvea of seven acres,
surrounded by 8t. Louis, 8t. Ursule, 8t. Aune and Garden streots.
The entrance faces the end of Parloir stroet. The chapel, which is 95
toot loug and 45 broad, is quite plain outside, but the interior Is
pleasing though simple. On the right of the principal altar is seen
a large grating which separates the church from the choir in which
the nung, who are cloistered, attend divine service. No man, not
even the Chaplain, is allowed to enter the cloister, save the Governor
of the country and members of the Royal family. The sisterhood of
the convent numbers nearly a hundred, and its educational systom
is justly renowned.

The daughters of leading Canadian and American families are
amongst the 250 or so of pupil-boarders in the institution, and there
are also a large number of day pupils. Fraser's Highlanders were
stationed in this convent during the winter of 1759, following the cap-
ture of Quebee, and the table on which the tirst sentence of death
was signed by the British authorities against a woman, Madame
Dodier, for poisoning her husband, is still to beseen in the rear part
of the convent,

But to tourists, the most attractive feature of the institution is
the chapel, which containg the mortal remains of Montcalm, and
what are claimed to he the following relies :—-thehody of 8t. Clements
from the Catacombs of Rome, brought to the Ursulines in 1687; the
skull of one of the companions of St. Ursula, 1675; the skull of 8t.
Justus, 1662; a piece of the Holy Cross, 1667; a portion of the Crown
of Thorns, brought from Paris in 1830,

General Montealm was buried here on the day following the fatal
yet glorious fight of the 18th of September, 1759, on the Plains of
Abraham. His appropriate tomb was an excavation in the rock
formed by the explosion of a shell. Le Moine relates that in 1888,
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" : it having been found necessary to repair the wall, an agod nun, Sistor
be i Dubé, who had, as a child, attended the funeral, pointed out the

] grave of Montcalm. The skeleton was found intact, and the skull
H placed in custody of the Chaplain.(l) A monument to the memorv
1 of the great General, erected September 14th, 1859, with an epitaph
1 prepared in 1768, by the French Academy, deserves attention. An-
t other was erected to his memory by Lord Aylmer in 1882, bearing an
; inscription of which the following is the traunslation:

!

Hoxor
TO
¢ MONTCALM!
FATE IN DEPRIVING HiM
or Vicrory
Rewaroep Hiv By
A Groriovs Dearu! H

RS

Of the works of art to be found in this chapel, the following de- g
seription is from theaccomplishedpen of Dr. Geo. Stewart, F.IWES., : i
who is moreover the author of the paper on Quebec in the Eneyclo- i |
peedia Britannica.

“It has no marbles of special account, but no city in the Dominion
can boast of ¢» many gems in oils, while in fine carvings on ivory,
it may be questioned, whether in Rome itself or in Florence, two i
such glorious Crucifixes as may be found in the little Ursuline chapel
can be seen. These Christs are wonderful pieces of work. They are
probably five hundred years old, and the artist who carved them is
unknown, but his splendid work stands out, and attests his genius.
Some one in the Ursuline Convent will show these masterpieces with
true French-Canadian politeness, and he will be careful to draw your

o

(1) “Quebee Pagt and Present,” by J, M. Le Moine, F.R,3.C,, page 373, 1
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attention to the life-like charactor of the Ohrist’s head, the magnifi-
cent correctness of the anatomy and the remarkable study of the
veins which ave disclosed. One never tires of looking at these two
beautiful vories, and it Is almost worth a visit to Quebee to see
them alone. But in this same Ursuline Chapel, which Howells has
80 cleverly limned in his delightful story of the Saguenay and of
Quebee, are many paintings in oil, which may be seen for the asking.
In the ehapel there is that masterpiece of the French School, “Jesus
sitting down at meat in Simon’s house,” by Philippe De Champagne.
The coloring is striking, fresh and nobly done. When Prince
Napoleon visited Quebec, some years ago, and saw this picture, ho
offered tho holders any price that they might name for it. But the
wisé churchmen declined all offers. This Champagne belonged to
the set which was sent to Quebec a hundred years ago trom Paris,
among a lot of paintings rescued from the French mob of the old
time communists, and sent here by a good priest who onee resided
in Quebec, and knew that her people would appreciate treasures of
that sort. Indeed, nearly all the really good pictures which this old
city boasts, reached it in the way described. All schools of art are
represented, and as a result we have hore the works of the noted
Italian, German, Spanish, Flemish, French and Eunglish painters of
three or four centuries ago, though of course, only a few exhibit them
at their best. In 1887, J. Prud’homme painted his Bishop of St.
Nonus, admitting to penance Ste. Pelagie. It is a brilliant canvas
and is shown here under a good light.” (1)

(1) Geo. Stewart, D.C.L, F.R.8.C,, in the Quebee Morning Chronicle,
June 19th, 1889, .
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St. Rounis Stéeet.

ETURNING by Parloivstreot from the Ursuline Convent, we are
again within a few bundred feet of the Chateau Frontenae, If
time will permit, lot us, prior to starting for a drive to the Cit-

adelor Parliament House, stroll quictly as far as 8t. Louis Gate, up 8¢,
Louls street, so rich in historic associations and relics of the Fronch
regime. In his sketch on “St. Louls street and its storiod past,”
dedicated to the Quebec Garrison Club, (Christmas 1890), Le Moine
made use of a dialogue, in which he places In the mouth of his friend
William Kirby, F.R.8.C,, and author of the “Golden Dog” novel, the
following suggestive utterance:—*St. Louis Gate! (I mean the old
gate). Why, that takes one back more than two hundred yoars. One
would like to know what King Louis XIII replied to his tar-seeing
Prime-Minister Cardinal de Richoliou, when he reported to him that
a crooked path in wood-covered Stadacona, leading through the
forest primeval, by & narrow clearance ealled La Grande Allée, all the
way to Sillery, was called Louis street: that he, Richelieu, had
ordered that his own name should be given to another forest path
near the Cote 8te. Geneviéve, now Richelieu street, and that it ran
parallel to anotber uneven road, called after a pious French Duchess,
d'Aiguillon street, whilst the street laid outv due north, parallel to
$t. Louis street, took the name of the French Queen, the beautiful
Anne of Austria. Did the royal mastor of Versailles realizo what a
fabulous amount of Canadian history would be transacted on this
rude avenue of his nascent capital in New France?”’

Passing by Campbell’s livery stable, in the office of which Mont-
calm expired in 1769, when it was Dr. Arnoux’s surgery, we come on
the same side of the street to the old fashioned stone edifice, now
bearing the street number 59, which was presented nearly 150 years
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ago by the French Intendant Bigot, to the besutiful Angélique de
Meloises, Madame Hughes Pean, as o New Year's gift. In conses
quence of Bigot’s passion for the beautiful Madame Pean, her hus.
band became prodigiously wealthy, having been sent away to a
distant post, where every opportunity was afforded him of making
8 fortune. The author of ‘“The Golden Dog” thus describes the old
house: “It was a tall and rather pretentious edifice, overlooking the
fashionable Rue 8t. Louls, where it still stands old and melancholy,
as if mourning over its departed splendor. Few eyes look up now-
adays to its broad facade. It was otherwise when the beautiful
Angélique sat of summer evenings on the baloony, surrounded by a
bovy of Quebec's fairest daughters, who loved to haunt her windows,
whero they could see and be seon to the bost advautage, exchanging
salutations, smiles and repartees with the gay young officers and
gallants who rode or walked along the lively thoroughfare.” Angé-
lique's career is vividly related in Kirby's great novel. After teiling
the story of the part she was supposed to have played in the murder
of her hated rival, Caroline, at Bigot's Chateau of Beaumanoir, a few
miles out of the city, the author of the * Golden Dog " describes how
this beautiful wreteh became the recognized mistress of the Inten-
dant--** imitating as far as she was able, the splendor and the guilt
of La Pompadour, and making the palace of Bigot as corrupt, if not
as brilliant, as that of Versailles. She lived, thenceforth, a life of
splendid sin. 8he clothed herself in purple and fine linen, while the
noblest ladies of the land were reduced by the war to rags and bog-
gary. She fared sumptuously, while men and women died of hunger
in the streets of Quebec. She bought houses and lands and filied
ber coffers with gold, out of the public treasuvy, while the brave
soldiers of Montcalm starved for want of pay. She gave fées and
banquets, while the English were thundering at the gates of the

b bl
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Caplital. She foresaw the eventful fall of Bigot and the ruin of the
vountry, and resolved that since she had falled in gotting himself,
she would make herself pussessor of all that he had, a: 4 she got it!
She would fain have gone to France totryher fortune when the
colony was lost, but La Pompadour forbade her presence there un-
der pain of her severest displeasure. Angélique raved at the inhibl-
tion, but was too wise to tompt the wrath of her royal mistress by
disoboying her mandate. She had to content herself with railing at
La Pompadour with the energy of three Furies, but she never ceased
to the end of her life to boast of the terror which her charms had ex-
ercised over the great favorite of the king. Rolling in wealth and
scarcely faded in beauty, Angéliqgue kept herself in the public eye.
She hated retirement and boldly claimed her right to a foremost
place in the society of Quebec. Her great wealth and unrivalled
power of intrigue enabled her to keep that place down to the last de-
oade of the last century. A generation ago, very old men and women
still talked of the gorgeous carriages and splendid liveries of the
great Dame de Pean, whom they had seen in their childhood, rolling
instate along the broad avenue of Ste. Foye, the admiration, envy
and evil example of her sox. Many people shook their heads and
whispered queer stories of ‘her past lifo in the days of Intendant
Bigot, but none knew the worst of her. The forgotten chamber of
Beaumanoir kept its terrible secret till long after she had disap-
peared from the scene of her extravagant life. The delight of An~
gélique was in the eyes of men, and the business of her life was to
retain their admiration down to the last years of an incorrigible old
age.” (1)

1n the early part of the present century this building was ac-
quired by the Ordnance Department as officers’ barracks, and is still
occupied by some of the local staff.

(1). The “Golden Dog,” by W. Kirby, pages 675 and 676
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Whete Montgumedy wus luid ant nnd
: buéied. .

FEW doors firther on, but on the opposite side of the street,

is the newly erected residenco of Chevalior Baillargé, ¥.R.8.0.,

City Engincer, being street number 72. This ocouples the

site of a low wooden buliding demolished in 1589, in which the body
of the Ameriean Gencral Richard Montgomery was lnid after his un-
successful and fatal attack upon Quebec, on the night of the Sist
Docember, 17756, At that time, this old hut was the cooper’s shop of
one Gobort. When demolished it was some 260 yearsold. It was cer-
tainly one of the oldest buillngs in the city, its rafters boing formed
of rough poles from which the bark bad never been completely re-
moved. A few steps further, on the same side of the street, and we
come to the old City Hall,-an unpretentious building to be dis-
carded in 1896 for the new structure facing the Basilica. Almost
opposite to it, on the other side of the street, with projecting modern
windows that have been rocently added, is the Union Olub House,
the home of the aristocratic elub of Quebee, and one of the most
gelect and most complete institutions of the kind in the country, In
1812-18, It served as o place of confinement for the American prison-
ers taken at Detroit. Later it was the residence of the Hon. W,
Smith, author of “Smith’s History of Canada.” The two houses
adjoining, now occupled respectively by Judges Routhier and Bossé,
formed one mansion, thirty years ago, which was occupied by Lord
Monk, then Governor-General of Canada. We have now arrived at

The Esplunade.

| HLIS is the name given to the expanse of verdure, fringed with
graceful maples and elws, extending from 8t. Louis to St.
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John's gate, aud lying at the foot of the greon slope erowned by the
city fortifieations, It was formorly the parade ground of the Impe-
rial troops, and reviows of Canadian forces sometimes ocour here. In
the large stone bullding on 8t, Louls streot, at the head of the Esplan-
ade, formerly resided Chiof Justice Jonathan Sewell, It is now the
officlal residence of Lt.-Col. C. E. Montizambert, of the Royal Regi-
mont of Canadian Artillery and Commandant of Quebec,

In the old Cavalry barracks at the back of this bullding are the
quarters of the “B” Fleld Battery R.C.A., consisting of some 70 men.
Near by I8 the stabling for the horses of the Battery., That long
butlding close to 8t. Louis Gate, is the Garrison Club, which fs under
the control of the military officers of the district, though civilisns
are admitted to membership upon certain conditions. The road that
turns up parallel with the fortifications, past the end of the Club
House, leads to the Citadel.

1In the yard of the old storehouse at the side of the green slope, on
the right haud side as one turns up the road, General Richard Mont.
gomery was burled after his fatal invasion of Quebee, on the Sist
December, 1775. De Gaspérolates (1) that a superb spaniel, belonging
to the dead general, lay for days upon his master's grave, and that it
was only when weakened by hunger after elght days’ vigil that the

unele of the distinguished autbor, Charles de Lenaudidre, aide-de-

camp to Lord Dorchester, succeeded in removing the faithful animal
from Montgomery’s place of sepuiture. The General’s sorrowing
widow, who was a daughtér of Judge Livingston, ot Claremont, on
the Hudson, and had been but littlo more than two years married at
the time of the General’s death, gave her consent to the removal ef
his remains from Quebec, as also did the Canadian Government, and

Q) “Mémoires par P. De Guspé,”’ page 40,
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they were exhumed on the 16th June, 1818, under the supervision of
Myr. Louis Livingston, the nephew of Mrs. Montgomery, the location
of the grave having beey pointed out by Nergeant Thompson, for-
merly of the British army, and then vighty-nine yoars of age, who had
assisted in the sepulture forty-three years before, The translation
of the remains from Quebec to New York was made at the expense
of the State of New York and inaccordance with an act passed by ite
: State Logislature, entitled: “An Act to honor the memory of General
Richard Montgomery.” Military hounors were paid the cortege while
en route to New York city through Americanterritory, and on the sth
July, 1818, the rema.ns were interred in 8t. Paul’'s Chureh, beneath
the monument, sculptured in France, which had been erected to his
memory by the order of Congress of the 25th January, 1776, and
which bears an ingeription from the pen of Benjamin Franklin. (1)

In December, 1894, while workmen were engaged in making
repairs to the imnterior of the present military storehouse near the
8t. Louis Gate, the remains of the thirteen American soldiers of
General Montgomery's army, who were killed with their gallant
general in the early morning attack upon Quebee, Decomber 31, 1775,
were tinearthed. Lieut.-Col. Forrest, in charge of the Stores Depart-
ment, at once gave inmr;wti(ms to have them placed in a suitable
coffin and reinterred under the flooring of the same building, and
close to the spot where they were tound. The two young daughters
of G. M. Fairchild, jr., of Cap Rouge, learning of this, asked for, and
obtained permission to set on foot a subseription among their little
friends in the States to defray the cost of a suitable tablet to mark
this last resting place of the brave fellows who had met death like

(1) See ‘‘ Notes on General Richard Mont y " in the't ti of
the Royal Society of Canada for 1891, by Mr. Faucher de St. Maurice, LL.D.
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true soldiers. The ohildren’s patriotic impulse received a gencrous
response, and the New England press waxed eloquent upon the sub-
Jeet, and eulogized the spivit of the young Americans under whose
initiative the fund was raised. The Minister of Militia, the Hou. J.
C. Patterson,was graciously pleased to give his consent to the placing
of the tablet as dosired by the two little maids. Another place of
pllgrimage is thus added for our American visitors., The tablet bears
the following insceription: “Beneath thig tablet repose the remains
of thirteen American soldiers of General Montgomery's army, who
were killed in the assault on Quebec, December 81st, 1775. Placed to
their memory by several American children.”

Through the gate, at this point, one obtains an exevllent view of
the Parliamont House. Thig, as well as the Citadel, will be deseribed
later. The present affords a good opportunity for a brief study of

(3 1

he @ity iutes aud Foftificationsz.

F all the historic monuments connecting modern Quebee with
G its eventful and heroic past, none have deservedly held a
higher place in the estimation of the antiquarian, the seholar

and the curious stranger than the gates of the renowned fortress.
These relics of & by-gone age, with their massive proportions and
grim, mediwval architecture, no longer exist, however, to carry the
mind back to the days which invest the oldest city in North America,
with its peculiar interest and attractions. Indeed, nothing now
remains to show where they once raised their formidable barriers to
the foe, or opened their hospitable portals to friends, but three hand-
some substitutes of modern congtruction and a number of yawning
apertures in the line of circumvallation that represents the later
defences of the place erected under British rule. Of the three gates—

8st. Louis, 8t. John and Palace—which originally pierced the fortifi+
5
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eations of Quebee under French Dominion, the last vestige disap-
pearcd many, many years ago, and the structures with which they
were replaced, together with the two additional and similarly
guarded openings--Hope and Prescott Gates—provided for the publie
convenience or military requirements by the British Government
since the Conquest, have undergone the same fate withinthe last few
decades, to gratify what were known as modern ideas of progress
and improvement, though vandalism would, perhaps, have been the
better term. No desecrating hand, however, can rob those hallowed
links, in the chain of recollection, of the glorious memories which
cluster around them so thickly. ‘Time and obliteration itselt have
wrought no diminution of the world's regard for their cherished
associations. To each one of them, an undying history attaches and
aven their vacant sites appeal with mute, but surpassing eloquence
to the sympathy, the interest and the veneration of visitors, to whom
Quebee will be ever dear, not for what it is, but for what it has been,
To the quick comprehension of Lord Dufferin, it remained to note
the inestimable value of such heirlooms to the world at large; to his
happy tact we owe the revival of even a local concern for their
religious preservation; and to his fertile mind and msthetie tastes,
we are indebted forthe conceptionof the noble secheme of restoration,
embellishment and addition in harmony with local requirements and
modern notions of progress, whizh has since been realized to keep
their memories intact for succeeding generations and retain for the
cradle of New France its unique reputation as the famous walled city
of the New World.

The ramble around the old ramparts of Quebee, makes an ex-
ceedingly interesting and picturesque stroll, and the various views
to be had therefrom, will amply repay the tourist for his trouble,
especially if he be armed with a kodak, or has the time and talent
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necessary for sketching or painting. Commencing therefore, with
8t. Louis Gate, we here start onf upon the little tour.

St. Kouiz @ate.

T has more than once boen remarked by tourists that, in their
peculiar fondness for a religious nomenclature, the early French
settlers of Quebec must have exhausted the saintly ealendar

in adapting names to their public highways, places and institutions.
To this pardonable trait in their character, we must unquestionahly
ascribe the names given to two of the three original gates in their
primitive lines of defence—St. Louis and St. John's Gates—-names
which they were allowed to retain when the Gallic lilies paled before
the meteor flag of Britain. The erection of the original 8t. Louis
Gateundoubtedly dates back as faras 16M. Authentic records prove
i this fact beyond question; but it is not quite so clear what part
| this gate played in subsequent history down to the time of the
Conquest, though it may be fairly presumed that it rendeved im-
portant services, in connection especially with the many harassing
attacks of the ferocious Iroquois inthe constant wars which were
waged in the early days of the infant colony, with those formidable
and savage foes of the Fronch. One thing is certain, however, that
it was one of the gates by which a great portion of Montealm's army,
after its defeat on the Plains of Abraham, passed into the city on its
way back, via Palace Gate and the bridge of boats over the St.
Charles, to the Beauport camp. In 1791, after Quebee had fallen into
British hands, St. Louis Gate was reported to be in a ruinous con-
dition, and it became necessary to pull it down and rebuild it. Be-
tween this date and 1823, it appears to have undergone several
changes; but in the latter year, as part of the plan of defence, in-
cluding the Citadel, adopted by the celebrated Duke of Wellington,

il
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and earried out at an enormous cost by England, it was replaced by
the structure, retaining the same name. About this time seem to
have been also constructed the singularly tortuous outward ap-
proaches to this opening in the western wall of the city, which were
eventually so inconvenient to traffic in peaceful days, of whatever
value they might have been from a military stand-pointin troub-
lous hours three quartersof a century ago. These were also re-
moved with the gate itself in 1871. On the vacant site of the latter,
in accordance with Lord Dufferin’s improved project, the present
magnificent archway with Norman spires and castellated turrets,
was erected in 1879, by Mr. H. J. Beemer. Lord and Lady Dufferin,
before their departure from Canada in 1878, assisted at the laying
of the foundation stone of this gtructure,

Proceeding in a northerly direction along the summit of the
fortification wall, until we come to where the Esplanade narvows in-
to a simple glacis hetween the wall and the street, we reach

Keut @ute.

HE line of fortification was only cut through here to give a new
avenue of communication between the Upper Town and the
suburbs, some eighteen years ago. It consequently became

necessary, in keeping with the msthetic spirit of the whole Dufferin
scheme, to fill up in some way this unsightly gap without interfering
with traffic. It was finally decided to erect here one of the proposed
memorial gates, which is altogether therefore an addition to the
number of the already existing gates or their intended substitutes.
This structure was designed to do homage to the meniory of Ed-
ward, Duke of Kent, the father of Her Majesty Queen Victoria, who
contributed from her own purse towards the cost of its construction,
and whose daughter, H. R. H. Princess Louise, laid its foundation

atone in 1879,
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A very short distance to the north of Kent Gate we come to
St. Jobu's Gute.

8 an interesting link between the present and the past 8t. John's
Gate holds an equally prominent rank and claims an equal
antiquity with 8t. Louis Gate. Its erection as one of the orig-

inal gates of the French fortress dates from the same vear, and ils
history Is very much the same. Through it, another portion of
Moncalm’s defeated foreos found their way behind the shelter of the
dofences after the fatal day of the Plains of Abrabam. Like St.
Louis Gate, too, it was pulled down on t of its ruinous con-
dition in 1791, and subsequently rebuilt by the British Government
in the shape in which it endured until 1865, when--the first of all the
more modern gates--it was demolished and replaced, at an expense
of some $40,000 to the c¢ity, by its present more ornate and conven-
ient substitute to meet the increased requirements of traffic over
the great artery of the upper levels—8t. John street. It may be
well to remark that St. John's Gate was one of the objective points
included in the A i plan of assault upon Quebec on the memor-
able 31st December, 1775; Col. Livingston, with a regiment of insur-
gent Canadians, and Major Brown, with part of a regiment from
Boston, having been detailed to make a false attack upon the walls
to the south of it and to set fire to the gate itself with combustibles
propared for that purpose—a neat little scheme in which the assail-
ants were foiled by the great depth of snow and other obstacles.

Baluig @ate.

ALAIS or the Palace Gate, claims attention as the third and last
of the old French portals of the city, and derives its title from
the fact that the highway which passed through it, led to the
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palace or residence of the famous or infamous Intendants of New
Prance, which has also given its name to the present quarter of the
city lying boneath the cliff on the northern face of the fortress,
where its crumbling ruins are still visible in the immediate neigh-
borhood of the passengor torminus of the Canadian Pacific Railway.
Erectod under Fronoh rule, during which it is believed to have been
the most fashionable and the most used, it bade a final farewell to
the last of its gallant, but unfortunate French defenders, and to
that imperial powor which, for more thaun one hundred and fifty
years, had swayed the colonial destinies of the Canadas, and contest-
ed inch by inch with England the supremacy of the New World,
when Montealn's defoated troops passed out heneath its darkoning
shadows on the evening of the fatal 18th Septomber, 1759. Aftor the
capitulation of Quebse, Genoral Murray devoted himself at once to
the work of strengthening the defences of the stronghold, and the
attention in this respect paid to Palace Gate appears to have stood
bim in good stead during the following year's campaign, when the
British invaders, defeated in the battle of 8t. Foye, weie compelled
to take shelter behind the walls of the town and sustain a shovt
sloge at the hands of the victorious French under de Lévis. In 1991,
the old French structure was razed by the English on account of its
ruinous condition: but in the meanwhile, during 1775, it had gallant-
ly withstood the assaults and siege of the American invaders under
Montgomery and Benedict Arnold. The somewhat ornate substi-
tute, by which it was replaced, is said to have resembled one of the
gates of Pompeil, and seems to have been ervcted as late as the yoar
1880 or 1831, as, in the course of its demolition in 1874, an inscription
was laid bare, attesting the fact that at least the timbers and planking
had been put up by local workmen in 1831. 1t is not intended to re-
build this gate under the Dufferin plan o account of the great vol-
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ume of traflie, more especially sinee the complotion of the Canndian
Pacific Railway, to whose terminus the roadway which loads over
ita sito is the most divect route. To mark that memorable site, how-
aver, it is intended to flank it on cither side with pleturesque Nor«
man turrets rising above the line of the fortification wall,

Aope (ute.

Y Y OPE Gate, also on the northern face of the ramparts, was the
H first of the two purely British gates of Quebee, and was erect-

ad in 1786 by Colonel Henry Hope, Commmandant of the Forces,
and Administrator of the Provinee, from whom it takes its name,
1t was demolished in 1874 for no reason, it would seom, but to gratify
the vandal taste which raged at the time--this one, least of all the
city gates, being an obstaelo to the growing requirements of traffio,
as will be readily understood from its situation and the style of its
construetion, which was an open arcway. Like Palaco Gate, too, it
is not to be rebuilt--its approaches heing easily commanded and its
position on the rugged, lofty cliff being naturally very strong. Its
site, howover, will be marked in the carryiug out of the Dufferin Im-
provements, should they ever be completed, by flanking Norman
turrets.

Brescott fate.

HE last of the city gates proper, wholly of British origin, but
the first that grimly confronted in by-gone days the visitor ap-
‘proaching the city from the water-side and entering the for-

tress, is, or rather was Prescott Gate, which commanded the steep ap-
proach known as Mountain Hill. This gate, which was more com-
monly known as the Lower Town Gate, because it lod to that part—
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the oldest—-of the city known by that name, was erected in 1797, (to
replace a rough structure of pickets, which existed at this point
from the time of the slege by the Americans in 1775), by General
Robert Prescott, who served in America during the revolutionary
war, and, after further service inthe West Indies, succeeded Lord
Dorchester as the British Governor-General in Lower Canada in
1796, dying in 1816 at the age of 89 years, and giving his name to this
memento of his administration, as well as to Prescott, Ontavio. Old
Proscott Gate was unquestionably a great public nuisance in times
of peace, such as Quebec has known for many years and as wo hope f
it will continue to enjoy for many more; its demolition in 1871 con-
sequently provoked the least regret of all in connection with the ob- °
literation of thoso curious relies of Quebec's historio past—its gates.

For reasons which are obvious, it would be impossible to replace
Prescott Gate with any structure of a light character without imped-

ing very seriously, the flow of traffic by way of such a leading artory

as Mountain Hill. Indeed, the utility of all such accessories of an
obsolete mode of warfare, and of much of the costly and compara-

tive modern defences of Quebec has boon altogether obviated by the

great changes In the military art, which has supplied their short-
comings by means of the still more recent and formidable case-

mated forts und earthworks at Point Levis.

It is one of the proposals, however, of Lord Dufferin’s plans to
replace this gate by a light and handsome iron bridge of a single
span, over the roadway, with flanki..¢ Norman turrets. (1).

(1). Much of the above description of the old gates of Quebee, and of Lord
Dufferin’s plans of ecity improv ts, is densed from the illustrated
supplement of the Quebec Morning Chroniele of June 4th, 1876, now unfortu-
nately somewhat rare.
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Fhe Hatel Dien.

BOUT five minutes’ walk from the Ohateau Frontenac, and an
even less distance from the Upper Town Market Place and
Basilics, ave the Hotel Dieu Convent and Hospital, founded in

1689, by the Duchesse d’Aiguillon, niece of the famous Cardinal
Richelieu, who Lrought out the Hospitalitres Nuns and placed them
in charge. This is the oldest institution of the kind in Ameriea.
The entrance to the chapel is on Charlevoix street. On his way
thither from the hotel, the tourist, especially upon reaching 8t. John

street, will be much interested in the curious angles at which some-

of the streets run, and notably Fabrique, Garneau and Couillard
streets, forming at their intersection of John street a number of re-
markable three-cornered lots having houses of the same irregular
shape constructed thereon. Some of the earliest Enropean habita-
tions erected in Canada were built upon these strects, which were
then mere Indian pathways. Like all the early public bulldings in
Quebec, the Hotel Dieu was destroyed by fire prior to the siege of
1750. It was subsequently rebuilt. Amongst the fine paintings that
adorn the walls of the chapel, are the following :—

TheNativity . . . . . . . . Stella.

The Virgin and Child . . . . Noil Coypol.

Vision of 8t. Thérése . . . . Geul Monagot.

St. Bruno in Meditation . . . Eustache LeSueur.

The Descent from the Cross . . Copy by Plamondon.

The Twelve Apostles . . . . Copy by Baillargé the elder.
The Monk inPrayer . . . . . De Zurbaran.

Of greater interest however, than either of these, admirable
_ though they be as works of art, are the relics of the early Jesuit
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martyrs,—massacred missionaricos, Hers arve deposited the bonos of
Pather Lalomant, and the skull of the brave Brebawuf, the latter rellv
belng contatued in a silver bust of the missionary hero, sent by bis
kinsmen from France. The story of the martyrdom of these two
heroes Is graphically told by Parkman. (1). Dragged from their
Huron Mission house at $3t. Ignace, south-east of Georglan Bay, by
the savage Iroquols, they were bound to stakes and slowly tortured
to death. Brobowuf continued to loudly exhort his Huron converts,
and promised them Heaven as a reward. * The Iroquois, inconsed,
svorched him from head to foot to silence him; whereupon, in the
tone of a master, he threatened them with ovorlasting flames for
persecuting tho worshippers of God,  As he continued to speak with
volee and countenance unchanged, thoy cut away his lower lip and
thrust a red hot iron down his throat, They tied strips of bark,
smeared with pitch, about Lalemant's naked body, and set fire to
them. Next thoy hung around Brebouf's neck a collar made of
hatchets heated red hot: ho, the indomitable priost, stood like a rock.
A Huron in the ¢rowd, who had been a convert of the mission, but
was an Iroquois by adoption, called out with the malice of a renc-
gade, to pour hot water on their heads, since they had poured so
much cold water on those of others. The kettle was accordingly
slung, and the water boilod and poured slowly on the two mission-
arlos. ‘Wo baptize you!’ they cried, ‘ that you may be happy in
heaven: for nobody can be saved without a good baptism.’ Brobauf
would not flineh: and in a rage, thoy cut strips of flesh from his ribs,
and devoured them before his eyes. Other r de Hurons called
out to him, ‘you told us that the more one suffers on earth, tho
happier he is in Heaven. We wish to make you happy: we torment

(1), The Jesuits in North America, page 388,

P N )
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you beeause we love you; and you ought to thavk us for it.' Aftern
sucesssion of other revolting tortures they sealpod him; when seo-
ing him nearly dead, they laid open his breast, and camo in a crowd
to driuk the blood of o vallant an enomy, thinking to imbibe with it
wome portion of his courage. A chief then tore out his heart awl
dovoured it Lalemant was tortured several hours louger, when
one of the savagos, tired of tho ontertainment, dispatohed him with
o hatehot,  Such was the martyrdom of those whose relies ave to be
found in the chapel.

It wo descend Palace Hill, which bounds the Hotol Dieu on the
west, and continue in the divection of the Canadian Paciflo Rallway
station, until we reach the plateau at its foot, we find ourselves close
to the site of

Bigot's Old Puluce.

into ale and portor vaults, and are still to he soen in rear of

Boswell's Browery. When tenanted by the infamous French
Intondants, the palace was employed for viler purposcs. It was
at onee the abode of luxury and the scene of rovelry and debauchery,
where Bigot concocted his nefarious plottings and squandered the
thousands which he robbed from the publie treasury. Often ho must
have lot himself into this princely palace with his lateh koy, in the
weo sma’ hours of the morning, after his disreputable rendez-vous
with the fair, or rather dusky oecupant of his country house, concealed
in the woods of Charlesbourg two or three miles away.

An American gentleman who visited Quebec some time ago, got
together the following somewhat hazy information concerning this
illieit lover: “The ruffianoi the tale had a very bad name, none
other than Bigot. He was a French Intendant in the year 1747, and

THE ruins of & portion of this Luilding have been transformed
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was a scape-grace and boodler of the deepest dye. He had to skip
out of France, because of certain deficiencies in the vaults of the
hank of which he we: manager, but even at that early history of the
world he knew enough to come to Canada, where he was lionized by
the ladies. He was rather fond of horsemanship, and taking lone
drinks out in the country hotels. One evening he got pretty full, and
could not find his way bome before night overtook him. He did not
care about ghost stories, for the ghost was in the habit of walking
for him at the end of each month with a great big wallet of dollars;
80 he sat down under a tree and slept. Caroline was accustomed to
climb a tree in that part of the wood every night for the purpose of
making up probs for the morning papers, and, unfortunately for her,
she choose the tree under which the Intendant was sleeping it off,
They saw each other, and loved at sight, and they might bave been
ever so happy if Mrs. Bigot didn’t happen to catech on to the
racket. Caroline was sleeping one night in her forest bower dream-
ing about the very bright world she lived in, when the green eyed
Mrs. Bigot crept in with a large snicker snee, and with a howl of
rage and vengeance severed the carotid artery of the sleeping
Indian beauty. When the Intendant heard of the row, he consti-
tuted himeelf judge and jury on his wife, hanged her first and tried
her afterwards. He then scooped up all the cash and bonds in the
Provincial Exchequer, and made his sneak in the dead of night to
the States, where he soon got into Congress.”

Bt. Bocks.

E low-lying portion of the city, stretching away west from the
scene of the old palace is 8t. Rochs suburbs. ‘Upon its main
thoroughfare, 8t Joseph street, are situated some of the finest;
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shops in Quebec, and the large and handsome parish church of St.
Rochs. 8t. Peter’s (Church of England) is upon 8t. Valier street.

In this quarter, which is also the industrial district of the city,
are to be found almost all the extensive tanneries and shoe factories
for which Quebec is noted. In years gone by, ship-building was a
great industry in 8t. Rochs, twenty to thirty wooden ships having
frequently been built in a single winter, along the banks of the St.
Charles river, and sometimes almost double that number. The whole
of this suburb was destroyed by fire in 1845, and numbers of human
beings perished. It was again burned over in 1866. The population
of St. Rochs and 8t. Sauveur is almost entirely French-Canadian.

Its retail merchants do a very large business, not only with the
farmers who reach the city with their produce by way of Dorchester
Bridge or LittleRiver Road, from the outlying country parishes, but
with the thousands of factory operatives in their midst, and of pro-
fessional men and others who gain their livelihood amongst them.

Most of the land upon which 8t. Roch's is built has been reciaim-
ed from the river. There is a large convent oppusite the parish
chureh, and near by it a public market-place, called after Jacques-
Cartier, the discoverer of Canada, where, as in the Lower Town, and
again outside of 8t. John’s Gate, the market-women sit in their carts
on market days, dickering with prospective purchasers as to the
prices for which they will sell their eggs, butter, flowers, vegetables,

home-spun wool, and those French-Canadian “black puddings ” that
are 80 fearfully and wonderfully made. Industry and frugality have
made some of these market-women and their families quite wealthy,
—a8 wealth is counted in the rural districts of French-Oanada. Near-
ly everyone of such families is represented by oneat least of its mem-
bers in the priesthood, or in the ranks of some of the othe_r learned
professions,
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Close to the edge of the River St. Charles at the foot of 8t. Ours
street,--which divides 8t. Rochs from St. Sauveur,—is the General
Hospital,—a large institution established in 1693 by Mgr. de St.
Valier, for the purpose of receiving and caring for old and infirm
people and for those afilicted by disease. 1t is a cloistered convent
and cared for by a Lady Superior and seventy nuns. Here was
carried Benedict Arnol«i, who commanded with General Montgomery
the New England Troops hesieging Quebec in 1775, after he was
wounded in the attack of the 31st December of that year.

St. Boch . F. X.

) THE building of the St. Roch Amateur Athletic Assooclation, or, as

it is properly called <“L’'A iation Athlétique des Amateurs de St.
Roch,” the members being nearly all French speaking, though
most of them speak excellent English, is situated on the corner of
Dorchester and Charest streets.. The building is & frame wooden
structure, which is to be cased in brick, though at the time of writ-

9

ing this has not yet been done. It measures 120 x 86 feet and is 36

feet in height. The Association was formed in the spring of 1893 and
its membership is about 200. The pflnelpal amusements are billiards,
bowling, rackets and handball, for all of which the appliances and
facilities are excellont. There is also a very good gymbasium in
connection with the Assoclation, which, as will be noticed, devotes
itself almost wholly to indoor sports, though its members freely
patronize the outdoor games and matches of thoe Q. A. A. A. Good
baths are also at the disposal of the members. The association
is controlled by a joint-stock company, composed of wealthy St.
Roch merchants,

3T
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Fhe Citndel and Foftification Wiallg,

leading attractions of Quebec. The road leading up to the Cita-

del has already been poinved out, between the Garrison Club
and St. Louis Gate. As there is a steep hill to climb, many prefer to
drive to the en‘rance of the celebrated fortress,

Before arriving there, the tourist passes through a labyrinth of
trenckes, bordered on either sides by high walls blocked by earth-
works, all of which are pierced with openings through which gleam
the mouth of the cannon, and loopholed for musketry. The entrance
to the Citadel is also barred by a massive chain gate, and also by the
Dalhousie Gate erected in 1827, a massive construction of considerable
depth. The Citadel covers an area of about forty acres on the high-
est point of Cape Diamond. The French erected wooden fortifications
here, and spent so much money upon them and upon the other de-
fences of the city, together with what was boodled by Bigot and his
assistants, that Louis XIV is reported to have asked whether the
fortifications of Quebec were built of gold.

The first un? ;r British rule were constructed by the Royal En-
gineers, and fell into decay at the end of the century. Their re-
construction dates back to 1823, and was carried out according to
plans submitted to and approved by the Duke of Wellington, at a
cost of uon $25,000,000. The guard rooms are located in the Dal-

housie Gate, the barracks are casemated and many of the other build -
ings are considered bomb-proof. The details of the slleged private
underground passages communicating with certain localities with-
out the fortress, are of course secrets that the mililary authorities
keep to themselves. At the easterly end of the officers’ quarters, a
substantial row of stone buildings overlooking the river, are the

Txm Citadel, and the old fortifications, rank of course amongst the .
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vice-regal quarters, where the Governor-General of Canuda and his
family reside during the latter part of the summer in each year,

In the centre of the square, tourists are showna small brass
cannon, captured by the British at Bunker’s Hill. I think it was
Joaquin Miller, who, when shown this formidable piece of ordnance,
said to his guide, “ well you’vegot the cannon but we've got Bunker’s
Hill.” Henry D. Thureau, who visited Quebec in 1850, says of the
Citadel:—* Such structures carry us back to the middle ages. , . ,
The sentinel with his musket, beside 8 man with his umbrella, is
spectral. . . Ishould as soon expect to find the sentinels still re-
lieving one another on the wallsof Nineveh. Whata troublesome
thing a wall is! I thought it was to defend me, and not Iit.”” (1). The
noon-gun on the Citadel still marks the meridian time as it did on the
oceasion of Thoreau’s visit. He described it as * answering the pur-
pose of a dinner horn.” The fortifications are, as Thoreau says,
omnipresent. No matter from what point you look towards Quebec
for eight or ten miles away, they are still withtheir geometry against
the sky. Nobody should miss the famcas view of the river and the
surrounding country from the King’s Bastion, already referred to.
Here is erected the flag-staff from which waves the emblem of Brit-
ain's sovereignty in these parts. It was by means of the halyard of
this flag-staff that the American sympathizers, General haller and
Colonel Dodge, in October, 1833, made their escape from the Citadel,

where they were prisoners. They had previously drugged the sen-
try, and contrived to get safely out of the city, despite the precaution
of the Commandant, 8ir James McDonald, a Waterloo veteran,

The garrison of Quebec now consists of some 365 officers and men
of the permanent Canadian Militia for~e, under the command. as

(1), A Yankee in Canada. Chapter IV.
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already mentioned, of Lieut-Col. Montizambert. Some 260 of these !

exclusive of officers, and comprising companies number one and two ! j

of the Royal Canadian Artillery, are quartered in the Citadel. The 1 |

1 quarters of “ B” Field Battery have been already iundicated. Up to ;

' n 1871 Quebec was garrisoned by British troops, of whom two regi- a1 |
! ments of the line with detachments of engineers and artillery were

i usually quartered here. When these 3000 men were withdrawn from ‘
Quebec in 1871, leaving the Gibraltar of America in charge of the

‘ ‘ Dominion force, it may readily be imagined what a loss was sus-

' tained by Quebec society and also by local tradesmen. It meant at

4 one stroke a decreased expenditure of nearly half a million dollars a b |
3 year. )

o In connection with the departure of the last of the Imperial | |

B | troops from Quebec, Captain Wallace is cited by Walter Richards,
i author of “the Queen’s Army,” as furnishing the following curious g
2 I and noteworthy coincid : “The d and third battalions of the ;
: 60th Regiment, as part of the first English garrison of Quebec, were :
).

present in September, 1759, when the British ensign was hoisted over
: the Citadel by an officer of the Royal Artillery; and in November,
[ i 1871,—one hundred and twelve years afterwards, a detatchment of

¢ the first battalion of the 60th,—the remnant of the last English garri-
'll son of Quebec, consigned the Imperial flag to the keeping of another
i artillery ofticer, while the flag of the Dominion of Canada was hoist- I

g od in its stead.” This famous Regiment, now known as the King’s

e Royal Ritle Corps, was originally called the Royal American, having

been raised in Amerioa in 1755. It was under this name that it was

n known at the siege of Quebec, under Wolfe, from whom it is claimed,

A8 | it received its present proud motto:—Celer et Audax.
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itefnfy and Higtofical Baciety.
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the Literary and Historical Society, whose quarters arein the

Morrin College, on the corner of 8t. Anne and St. Stanislas
stroets. It was esteblished as far back as 1824 by the Earl of Dal-
housie, then Governor-General of Canada, and through his influ-
ence a Royal Charter was obtained for it. The scope of the soclety’s
operations is widespread, its collection of manuseripts and rare his-
torical documents, printed and otherwise, is extensive and valuable,
and the library and reading room are exceedingly good, and serve
their purpose admirably. Such studente of history as Franocis
Parkman, General Rogers, Ben: Perley-Poore, General James Grant
Wilson, Mr. Edward Slafter and other men of mark have made

QUEBEO is a storehouse of history, but its sanclum sanctorum is

' frequent use of its collections of papers, and it stands to-day, as one

of the foremost bodies of the kind on the Continent. Its President,
Mr. Archd. Campbell, and its past presidents, Mr. Cyr. Tessier

and Dr. Geo. Stewart, F.R.8.C., F.R.G.8,, are ever ready to show
any attention and courtesy that may be in their power to people of
literary tastes visiting Quebec. Morrin College is called after Dr.
Morrin, its founder, has two faculties, arts and divinity, and is affli-
ated with McGill University, Montreal. The building was used as a
jail unti! June, 1867. In April, 1827, one Ducharme was hanged here for
sheep stealing. The last execution at the old jail dates back more
than thirty years, the condemned, who was one Meehan, from Val-
cartier, having been convicted of the murder of a neighbor, named
Pearl, in 8 street squabble.
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Chusfeches.

N close proximity to Morrin College, are the Methodist church and
St. Andrews (Presbyterian). The Baptist churchis a litt!e below
and inside of 8t. John's Gate, and Chalmers’ (Preshyterian)is a

little above the east of the Esplanade, on the upper part of St.
Ursule. St. Patrick’s, the parish church of the Irish Roman Cath-
olics of Quebec, situated on McMahon street, close to both Palace and
8t. John streets, has one of the handsomest interiors in the city, its
decorations being exceedingly beautiful. On 8t. John street, outside
the gate, is St. Matthew's (Anglican), an exceedingly pretty struc-
ture both within and without, and possessing a new peal of bells. It
has a surpliced choir and by far the richest, mostattractive and most
ornate service of any Protestant church inQuebec. Therearealsoon
this street a small French Protestant church, and the large new church
of St.John Baptiste, erected to replace that destroyed by fire a few
years ago. The remaining city churches are not of much interest to
tourists, if we except the Basilica and English Cathedral, which have
already been described at considerale length, and the large Roman
Catholic Churches of 8t. Rchs and St. Sauveur, upon the lower
level of the city.

The Baflinment Flouge.

HE Parliament House and Departmenta! Buildings, situated
immediately outside of St. Louis Gate, on St. Louis étreet, or as

it is here called,—Grande Allée, are amongst the finest public
edifices in Canada. Designed by Mr. E. E. Taché, of Quebee, their
construction was commenced in 1878 and completed in 1887. The
different varieties of stone employed in their erection were all quar-
ried in the Province of Quebec. The buildings form a perfect square,
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each side of which is 800 feet in length, and four stories in height
with mansards, and towers at each corner. From the main tower
facing the city, the view of Quebec and the surrounding country is
unrivalled. The interior is well worthy of inspection, especially the
handsomely tiled main corridors and the richly furnished cham-
bers of the Legislative Council and Legislative Assembly. The
bronze Indian group in front of the main entrance to Parliament
House, is by Hébert, the Canadian sculptor now residing in Paris, in
which ity it was mnuch admired for its boldness of conception and
artistic design and execution. Heroic statuary of the principal
actors in Canadian history finds a lodgment in the various recesses
in the front facade of the Parliament House, those of Count Frontenae,
of Generals Wolfe, Montealm and de Levis, of Colonal DeSalaberry
and Lord Elgin, being already in position. This block of provinciai
buildings has already cost between $1,500,000 and $2,000,000. It con-
tains an excellent library, and in its vaults may Ye seen in very good
condition, all, or nearly all, the original archives of New France, be-
fore the conquest by Great Britain in 1760. In theee buildings, there
was held in September, 1890, the ninth annual meeting of the Amer-
ican Forestry Association, on which occasion two hickory trees
gent from the Hermitage, General Andrew Jackson’s old home in
Tennessee, were planted, where they may now be seen on the Grande
Allée, or south side of the buildings. The venerable. hief Sioui of the
once powerful Hurons, accompanied by his son, both in full Indian
dress, visited the association, and addressed the members, in French,
in the following emotional language:—

“We are the children of the forest, come to welcome the friends
of the forest. I wish you for my people joy and sucess in your good
work. When I was a child I lived in the forest; I wish to die there.
We are few in number; we are passing away with our forest homes.




Protect us, and you will have the prayers of the Hurons, and the
grativude of their hearts. Farewell!”

The annual sessions of the Legislatureof the Province of Quebec
are held in these buildings. The Legislature consists of two brans
ches,—the Legislative Council, composed of twenty-four members,
appointed for life by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council, and the
Legislative Assembly, of which there are seventy-three members,
olocted every flve years or oftener. 'The sessions of the Legislature
aro held generally in November, December and January, and the
proceedings and debates are for the most part conducted in the
French language, though both English and French may be used.
The sessions of the Legislature are both opened and closed by His
Honor the Licutenant-Governor of the Province, who must also sane-
tion all bills that have passed both branches of the Legislature,
before they can become law, which he does in the name of Her
Majesty the Queen, whose representative for provincial purposes he
is. On these affairs of state, he occupies the Throne, in front of
which, at all other times, stands the chair of the Speaker of the
Legislative Council,

The Parliament House also contains all the provincial depart~
ments of state, each of which is presided over by & cabinet minister,
responsible to the elective branch of the Legislature. Thus the
members of the Government only retain office so long as they pos-
sess the confidence of a majority of the direct representatives of the
people.

At present writing the Hon. J. A. Chapleau is Lieutenant-Govern-
or of the Province; Hon. L. 0. Taillon, Premier and Provincial Treas-
urer; Hon, E, J. Flynn, Commissioner of Crown Lands ; Hon. Ls. Beau-
bien, Commissioner of Agriculture; Hon. T. C. Casgrain, Attorney-
General; Hon. G. 0. Nantel, Commissioner of Public Works; Hon.
L. P. Pelletier, Provincial Secretary; Hon. M. F, Hackett, President
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of the Executive Council; Houn. T. C. Chapais, Minister without port-
folio and Speaker of the Legislative Council; Hon. A. W. Morris,
Minister without portfolio. The Speaker of the Leogislative Assem-
bly is the Hon. P. E. LeBlanc.

TER
wénll #nll and the Shoét-Wallich

Monument.

HAT large and very handsome structure with a decidedly
military appearance, on the opposite side of the road from the
Parliament House, and a fow hundred feet further away from

the city, is the new Drill Hall, erected jointly by the Federal Govern-
ment and city corporation, for the use of local military organiza-
tions. The main road here, though really a continuation of 8t. Loujs
street, preserves its old Prench name of (irande Allée. It was
widened in 1888-89.

Facing the Grande Allée upon the square in front of the Drill
Hall is the newly-erected monument in memory of the late Major
Short and Stafl-Sergeant Wallick, both of “ B '’ Battery, Royal Can-
adian Artillery, who lost their lives while gallantly fighting the
flames in the great conflagration of the 16th May, 1889, which des-
troyed a large portion of St. Sauveur suburbs. Short and Wallick
entered a house close to where the flames were raging in order to at-
tach a fuse to a barrel of gunpowder therein, for the purpose of
creating a gap and so checking the progress of the fire. It is sup-
posed that a spark ignited the powder, which was not properly
covered, for a terrific explosion ocourred almost as soon as they had
entered the building. There was still life in the body of Wallick
when it was recovered, though he survived tut a few hours, but only
small portions of Major 8hort’s remains were ever found,
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The monument was erected to the joint memory of the two
horoes by the citizens of Quebey, alded by the Provinoial Govern-
ment. The busts, in bronze, are life-like representations of the
heads of the two soldiers, and the figure beneath is emblematical of
the City of Quebec,

Rlaces of Execution,

of the country, brings us to the height of land, now known as

Porreault’s Hill, and formerly, under the Fronch regime,—la
Butte & Nepvéu. Up to the end of the last century, this was the gen-
oral place of ‘execution in Quebee. Numerous criminals here expi-
ated thelr crimes upon the scaffold, amongst others, according to
some historians, having been La Corriveau, the infamous murder-
ess of Bigot's Indian amoureuse,--the unfortunate Caroline, though
some authorities, as will be seen further on, place the scene of her
execution upon the other side of the St. Lawrence. L

De Gaspé, in his memoirs (page 110), tells a rowantic story of the
manner in which a condemned French soldier, here cheated the
gallows, by the aid of his Father Confessor, shortly before the
British Conquest of Canada. The crime for which he bad been con-
demned to be hanged was the murder of a comrade, whom he accused
of oriminal intrigues with his wife. The victim had been known in i
Quebec as a very bad character. The murderer, on account of the i i
circumstances preceding his crime, as wel! as becaveoof his previous
good conduct, enjoyed to a large respect the sympathy of the com-
munity. A number of his friends plotted to<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>